
Central Virginia 
Transportation Authority 

(CVTA)   

NOTES  
This meeting is open to the public. 
Members of the public are invited to attend 
in person or virtually.  Please alert the 
CVTA at information@cvtava.org if 
electronic transmission of this meeting 
fails for the public.  Please refer to our 
Statement Regarding Virtual Meeting 
Participation by Members of the Public 
for more information. 

Check out our complete Public 
Participation Guide online to learn about 
the different ways you can stay connected 
and involved. 

Meetings are also live streamed and 
archived on our YouTube Channel 
at Plan RVA - YouTube. 

Members of the public are invited to 
submit public comments either verbally 
or in writing. Written comments can be 
submitted through the Q&A/Chat 
function on Zoom by email to 
CVTA@PlanRVA.org. Written comments 
will be read aloud or summarized during 
the meeting when possible and will be 
included in the meeting minutes. Verbal 
comments will be taken during the 
Public Comment Period on the agenda. 
Please indicate by raising your hand (in-
person participants, where applicable) or 
through the Q&A/Chat functions on Zoom 
(virtual participants) if you would like to 
comment.  When acknowledged by the 
Chairman, please clearly state your name so 
that it may be recorded in the meeting 
minutes.

Photo: Charles City County Visitors Center 

PlanRVA is where the region comes together to look ahead. 
Established in 1969, PlanRVA promotes cooperation across 

Authority, the Emergency Management 
Alliance of Central Virginia, Lower Chickahominy Watershed 
Collective and Don’t 

mailto:information@cvtava.org
https://planrva.org/wp-content/uploads/Statement-Regarding-Virtual-Meetings-Updated-March-2023.pdf
https://planrva.org/wp-content/uploads/Statement-Regarding-Virtual-Meetings-Updated-March-2023.pdf
https://planrva.org/wp-content/uploads/Public-Participation-Guide-updated-March-2023.pdf
https://planrva.org/wp-content/uploads/Public-Participation-Guide-updated-March-2023.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/@PlanRVA/videos
mailto:CVTA@PlanRVA.org


e: information@cvtava.org 
p: 804.323.2033                                                 
w: CVTAva.org 

Ashland | Charles City | Chesterfield | Goochland | Hanover | Henrico | New Kent | Powhatan | Richmond 
PlanRVA, 424 Hull Street, Suite 300, Richmond, VA 23224 

CVTA Agenda – Page 1 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
CENTRAL VIRGINIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 

Friday, February 23, 2024, 9:00 a.m. 
PlanRVA James River Boardroom, 

424 Hull Street, Suite 300, Richmond, VA 23224 and via Zoom 

 
Call to Order (Stoney) 
 
Pledge of Allegiance (Stoney) 
 
Certification of a Quorum (Scott) 
 
Welcome and Introductions (Stoney) 
 
A. ADMINISTRATION 

 

1. Confirmation of Member Participation from a Remote Location 
(as needed) (Stoney) 
 

Action requested (if there are member requests to participate remotely):  motion to 
confirm that the Chair’s decision to approve or disapprove the member(s) request to 
participate from a remote location was in conformance with the CVTA Policy for 
Remote Participation of Members; and, the voice of the remotely participating 
member(s) can be heard by all persons at the primary or central meeting location 
(voice vote).  
 

2. Consideration of Amendments to the Agenda 
(Stoney) 

 

3. Approval of CVTA Meeting Minutes – January 26, 2024 – page 4 
(Stoney) 
Action requested: motion to approve meeting minutes as presented (voice vote). 
 

4. Open Public Comment Period 
 

5. CVTA Chairman’s Report 
(Stoney/5 minutes) 
 
 
 
 
  

 

If you wish to participate in this meeting virtually, please register via Zoom at the following link: 
https://planrva-org.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_j6zFbplhTlmwbYwWbceLMQ 

 

https://planrva.org/transportation/cvta/
https://planrva-org.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_j6zFbplhTlmwbYwWbceLMQ


CVTA Agenda – page 2 
 

 
 

B. PUBLIC HEARING – CVTA REGIONAL REVENUE DRAFT FUNDING SCENARIO – page 10 
 

C. ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. CVTA Regional Projects Cycle – Project List and Regional Revenue Draft Funding 
Scenario – page 25 
(Parsons/5 minutes) 
Action requested: motion to approve the Project List and Regional Revenue Draft 
Funding Scenario.  
 

D. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

1. CVTA Finance Committee Update 
(30 minutes) 
a. Finance Committee Chair’s Report (Carroll) 
b. Financial Activities and Investment Reports (Parsons) – page 27 

 
2. CVTA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Update 

(Clarke/15 minutes) 
a. TAC Chair’s Report  

 
E. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

1. CVTA Member Comments 
 

F. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



  
e: CVTA@PlanRVA.org 
p: 804.323.2033 
w. CVTAva.org 
 

 

CVTA Meeting Minutes – page 1 
 
 

 CENTRAL VIRGINIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Friday, January 26, 2024, 9:00 a.m. 

PlanRVA James River Boardroom and via Zoom 
424 Hull Street, Suite 300, Richmond, VA 23224X 

 
Members Present:  
  

Jurisdiction/ 
Agency  

Member Present Absent Designee Present Absent 

Town of Ashland  John H. Hodges, 
Vice Chair 

X  Daniel McGraw  X 

Charles City County Byron Adkins, Sr. X  Ryan Patterson  X 
Chesterfield 
County  

Kevin P. Carroll X  James Holland  X 

Goochland County Neil Spoonhower   X Tom Winfree X  
Hanover County Sean Davis X  Ryan Hudson  X 
Henrico County  Tyrone Nelson X 

(virtual) 
 Vacant   

New Kent County  John Moyer X  Amy Pearson  X 
Powhatan County  Steve McClung  X Mark McKinney  X 
City of Richmond  Mayor Levar M. 

Stoney, Chair 
X  Kristin Nye 

 
 X 

VA House of 
Delegates  

Vacant   N/A 
 

  

Senate of Virginia  Senator Ghazala F. 
Hashmi 

 X N/A   

Commonwealth 
Transportation 
Board 

J. Rex Davis X  N/A   

 
Non-Voting Ex-Officio 
     

Agency Member Present Absent Designee Present Absent 
CRAC Perry J. Miller X  John Rutledge X  
GRTC  Sheryl Adams X  Adrienne Torres   
RMTA Joi Taylor Dean  X  N/A   
VDRPT Jennifer DeBruhl  X Zach Trogden  X 
VDOT Stephen Brich  X Dale Totten (A) X  
    Mark Riblett (A)  X 
Virginia Port 
Authority 

Stephen A. 
Edwards 

 X Cathie J. Vick  X 

    Barbara Nelson   X 
(virtual) 

 

 
The technology used for the CVTA meeting was a web-hosted service created by Zoom and YouTube Live 
Streaming and was open and accessible for participation by members of the public. A recording of this 
meeting is available on our Plan RVA YouTube Channel.  
 
 

4

mailto:CVTA@PlanRVA.org
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9ASolCv7PbihiCYdncLsOA


CVTA Meeting Minutes – page 2 
 

 
 
 
Call to Order 
The Central Virginia Transportation Authority (CVTA) Chairman, Levar M. Stoney, presided and 
called the January 26, 2024, Central Virginia Transportation Authority meeting to order at 9:22 
a.m.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Stoney. 
 
Welcome and Introductions 
Chair Stoney welcomed all attendees. 
 
A. ADMINISTRATION 

 

1. Confirmation of Member Participation from a Remote Location  
Chair Stoney reported that two members requested approval to participate remotely: 

• Barbara Nelson, for the following reason:  principal residence location more than 60 
miles from the meeting location. 

• Tyrone Nelson, for the following reason:  a personal matter, specifically a scheduling 
conflict that prevents in-person attendance. 

 
Chair Stoney announced his approval of the requests to participate remotely.  
  
On motion by Kevin Carroll, seconded by John Hodges, the Authority voted unanimously to 
approve the members’ requests to participate from a remote location were in conformance 
with the CVTA Policy for Remote Participation of member; and, the voice of the remotely 
participating member could be heard by all persons at the primary or central meeting 
location (voice vote).  

 
The quorum was updated to show the presence of the remote member. 
 
  

2. Consideration of Amendments to the Meeting Agenda 
There were no requested amendments to the agenda. 
 

3. Approval of December 1, 2023, CVTA Meeting Minutes  
On motion by John Hodges, seconded by Byron Adkins, the members of the Authority 
voted to approve the CVTA meeting minutes as amended (voice vote; Sean Davis abstained). 
  

4. Open Public Comment Period 
There were no citizens present in-person or virtually wishing to offer public comments. 
 

5. CVTA Chairman’s Report 
Chair Stoney welcomed the new members of the Authority: Sean Davis, Tyrone Nelson, 
John Moyer and Steve McClung. 
  

6. Capital Region Airport Commission Update  
Perry Miller, CEO, Basil Dosunmu, Chief Financial Officer, Troy Bell, Director of Marketing and 
Air Service Development, and John Rutledge, Chief Operating Officer, were present at the 
meeting.  Mr. Miller introduced his team and began a presentation on recent and upcoming  
 
 

5



CVTA Meeting Minutes – page 3 
 

 
 
activity and developments at Richmond International Airport.  Mr. Bell and Mr. Rutledge 
presented additional information about the airport. 
 

7. CVTA Executive Director’s Report 
Mr. Parsons reported that bond counsel is under contract and staff has met with them in 
preparation to prepare for possible bonding. 
 

a. Member Profile Form   
Ms. Scott explained the newly created member profile form and explained that there is a 
section for members to indicate which boards and committees they would like to receive 
email notices and calendar invitations for. 
 

B. ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Cost Estimate Verification   
Mr. Parsons provided an update on the cost estimate verification.  He reported that the CVTA is 
required to ensure the cost estimates are as accurate as possible.   As part of the review process, a 
third -party consultant was hired and reviewed each project estimate.  If approved by the 
Authority, the cost estimates will be used to develop the draft 6-year project list and funding 
scenario. Authority members had questions and Mr. Parsons clarified that each project had a 
separate RFP. For round three, Michael Baker International was hired. 
 
On motion by Sean Davis, seconded by Kevin Carroll, the members of the Authority voted 
unanimously to approve cost estimates for consideration in development of draft 6-year 
project list and funding scenario (roll call vote; see Appendix A). 
 

2. Updated CVTA Revenue Estimates (annual projections from VDOT)  
Mr. Parsons reviewed the annual projections from VDOT. 
 
On motion by Kevin Carroll, seconded by John Moyer, the members of the Authority voted 
unanimously to accept 2023 CVTA revenue estimates from VDOT and incorporate them into the 
Round 3 Regional Funding Scenario (roll call vote; see Appendix A). 
 

3. CVTA Finance Committee Membership 
Chair Stoney explained the need to fill two vacant seats on the committee.  He described the 
bylaws requirements and guidance document language regarding appointments to that 
committee.  According to the recommended rotation schedule in the guidance document, New 
Kent County and Powhatan County are the next two localities to have members appointed to the 
committee. 
 
Kevin Carroll, Finance Committee Chair, provided an overview of the discussion on this matter at 
the last committee meeting.  
 
On motion by Kevin Carroll, seconded by John Hodges, the members of the Authority voted 
unanimously to appoint John Moyer and Steve McClung as members of the CVTA Finance 
Committee according to the CVTA Non-Binding Governance Guidance Document #1, adopted 
July 14, 2023 (voice vote). 

 
 
 
 
 

6

https://planrva.org/wp-content/uploads/Member-Profile-Form.pdf


CVTA Meeting Minutes – page 4 
 

 
 
C. REPORTS 

 

1. CVTA Finance Committee Update 
a. Finance Committee Chair’s Report   

Mr. Parsons reported that the Finance Committee is working to ensure the Authority has 
all the information needed to make reasonable, deliberate decisions with regard to the 
possible issuance of bonds. 
 

b. Financial Activity and Investment Reports  
Mr. Parsons reviewed the financial activity and investment reports.  
 

2. CVTA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Update 
a. TAC Chair’s Report  

Ms. Clarke came forward and provided an overview of TAC activity.  She reported that the 
committee worked on the cost estimate verifications and the candidate project 
database.  They also discussed base-lining existing project scenarios. The round 3 project 
recommendations will be on the next Authority agenda for approval.  The Smart Scale 
applications are due in March.  She provided an explanation for new members on the 
regional fund project selection process.  The are the projects the CVTA has selected for 
regional funds. 
 

3. Candidate Project Database 
Mr. Parsons explained the projects listed on the database document and reported that the 
document the document is updated regularly. He clarified that the Authority staffing needs 
have been taken into account for the upcoming years with respect to additional workload.  A 
formal staffing needs assessment has not been undertaken. 
 
He also clarified that there are no Powhatan County projects listed at this time but staff is 
working with each locality to ensure their needs are reflected in the database. 

 
4. Agency Updates 

a. PlanRVA Report 
b. RRTPO Report  

Mr. Parsons explained that these are two information reports that will be included in each 
agenda packet going forward.  They are intended to keep the members of the Authority 
up to date with PlanRVA and RRTPO activity. 
 
Mr. Davis noted that the great relationship that has developed between members of the 
three organizations has been a tremendous benefit to the nine localities. 
 

D. OTHER BUSINESS 
  

1. Newsletter: The Better Together Connector 
A link to the newsletter was provided in the meeting agenda for members’ information. Ms. 
Scott explained that this will be in each agenda going forward to give members the 
opportunity to view the most recent edition of the Better Together Connector. 
 

2. CVTA Member Comments 
Mr. Moyer reported that New Kent County is very appreciate for the CVTA attendance at Ms. 
Patricia Paige’s memorial service and the Authority’s support for the petition to the CTB to 
name the portion of I-64 in New Kent County that is now being widened as the Patricia A. 
Paige Memorial Highway. 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT 
Chair Stoney adjourned the meeting at 10:28 a.m. 

7



Motion as 
presented:

PASS

Members Population*
Weighted

 Votes "Yay" "Nay" Abstain Absent
Voting 
Check

Population
"Yays" "Yay" "Nay"

7,873             1 1 Ok 7,873           1 0
6,773             1 1 Ok 6,773           1 0

364,548        4 1 Ok 364,548       4 0
24,727          1 Ok -               0 0

102,106        3 1 Ok 102,106       3 0
334,389        1 Ok 334,389       0 0

22,945          2 1 Ok 22,945         2 0

30,333          2 1 Ok -               0 0

226,610        4 1 Ok 226,610       4 0

1 Ok 0 0

1 Ok 0 0

1 1 Ok 1 0
* Census 2020 1,120,304     18 8 0 0 4 12 1,065,244   16 0

VALID

Quorum:
A majority of the voting members of the Authority (or designees) shall constitute a quorum.  There are 
12 voting members, therefore at least 7 members must be present to constitute a quorum.
Quorum Presen YES

OVERALL VOTE =

Ashland
Voting Check VALID

Charles City

Quorum Present YES
Goochland

Hanover 4/5 Population in 
Affirmative

PASS
Henrico

A "Valid" vote requires all 12 members to have their vote
marked "Yay", "Nay", "Abstain" or marked "Absent".

Motion to approve cost estimates for consideration in development of draft 6-year project list and 
funding scenario.

New Kent

Powhatan

Richmond

Delegate

Senator

CTB Member

Chesterfield

UNWEIGHTED WEIGHTED

APPENDIX A

8



Motion as 
presented:

COLUMN PASS

Members Population*
Weigh

ted "Yay" "Nay" Abstain Absent
Voting 
Check

Population
"Nays" "Yay" "Nay"

7,873               1 1 Ok -                 1 0
6,773               1 1 Ok -                 1 0

364,548          4 1 Ok -                 4 0
24,727            1 Ok -                 0 0

102,106          3 1 Ok -                 3 0
334,389          1 Ok -                 0 0

22,945            2 1 Ok -                 2 0

30,333            2 1 Ok -                 0 0

226,610          4 1 Ok -                 4 0

1 Ok 0 0

1 Ok 0 0

1 1 Ok 1 0
* Census 2020 1,120,304       18 8 0 0 4 12 - 16 0

VALID

Quorum:
A majority of the voting members of the Authority (or designees) shall constitute a quorum.  There are 
12 voting members, therefore at least 7 members must be present to constitute a quorum.
Quorum Presen YES

A. Four-fifths of the pop. embraced by the Authority =
B. Pop. of voting members (cities & counties) present & voting in the affirmative = ← PASS

If B. is greater than or equal than A., motion PASSES.
If B. is less than A., vote FAILS. If B. is less than A., motion FAILS.

PASS
Henrico

New Kent

Powhatan

Richmond

VALID
Charles City

Chesterfield
YES

Goochland

Voting Check

Quorum 
Present

4/5 
Population in 

Affirmative

Ashland

Hanover

Delegate

Senator

CTB Member

A "Valid" vote requires all 12 members to have their vote
marked "Yay", "Nay", "Abstain" or marked "Absent".

Decisions of the Authority shall require an affirmative vote of those present and voting whose votes represent at least four-fifths of the population embraced by the Authority; however, no motion to fund 
a specific facility or service shall fail because of this population criterion if such facility or service is not located or to be located or provided or to be provided within the county or city whose chief elected 
officer's or elected official's, or its respective designee's, sole negative vote caused the facility or service to fail to meet the population criterion. 

Motion to approve cost estimates for consideration in development of draft 6-year project list and funding 
scenario.

UNWEIGHTED WEIGHTED OVERALL VOTE =

APPENDIX A

9



  information@cvtava.org
                                                                                                                      804-323-2033  
                                                                                                                   CVTAva.org 
 

 
Ashland | Charles City | Chesterfield | Goochland | Hanover | Henrico | New Kent | Powhatan | Richmond 

 
 

Members 
 

Town of Ashland 
 

Charles City 
County  

 
Chesterfield 

County 
 

Goochland 
County 

 
Hanover County 

 
Henrico County 

 
New Kent 

County 
 

Powhatan 
County 

 
City of 

Richmond 
 

VA House of 
Delegates 

 
Senate of VA 

 
Commonwealth 

Transportation 
Board 

__________ 

VDRPT 
VDOT 
GRTC 
RMTA 

Port of Virginia 
 
 

 
 

2/8/2024 
For immediate release 
 

Central Virginia Transportation Authority 
FY 2025-2030 Regional Revenue Draft Funding Scenario 

 
The Central Virginia Transportation Authority is seeking public comment on its proposed 
projects and funding. 

The Central Virginia Transportation Authority (CVTA) was created to help fund 
transportation projects that benefit the region. 

Member localities and regional transportation partners engaged in a competitive 
application process where projects were submitted for funding. Together, the CVTA staff 
and members assessed the projects’ merit, cost, and regional value before determining a 
draft slate of final project commitments.  

This process happens only every two years and this is the result. Now the projects are 
open for your input. The Authority is seeking feedback on the following: 

• FY 2025-2030 Regional Revenue Draft Funding Scenario 
o Regional leaders will soon make funding decisions worth an estimated $151.5 

million to improve local bike, pedestrian, bridge, and highway infrastructure 
over the next four years.  

o Review the proposed projects list: https://planrva.org/transportation/cvta-
comments 

Submitting your comments on the proposed project list: 

A 15-day public comment period on the project list will be open from February 8, 2024- 
February 22, 2024.  All comments sent before 3 p.m. on February 22, 2024, will be 
distributed to the members of the Authority. 

1. Submit via the comment box on the site or via email at information@cvtava.org . 
2. Submit comments during the public hearing: 

a. In person: February 23, 2024, at 9am at PlanRVA at 424 Hull St Suite 300, 
Richmond, VA 23224     OR 

b. Virtual: register for the Zoom Video Webinar and submit your comment via the 
Q&A dialog box. 

10

mailto:information@cvtava.org
mailto:information@cvtava.org
https://planrva.org/transportation/cvta/
https://planrva.org/transportation/cvta-comments
https://planrva.org/transportation/cvta-comments
mailto:information@cvtava.org
https://planrva-org.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_j6zFbplhTlmwbYwWbceLMQ#/registration


��������	��
�������������� ������ ������� ���������� ����������� !�"���#�� ����������� !�����$"���#�� �%���&����'()(*�������+� ��,-����'()(*�������+ %.�����/�01�/2
3�4566�789::8�7;<9:=�>?:�@<8; ABC;DEF= GBH:I@:= J;B?�K9EL:C8�M>@N�JOPQRST�UB66�BDK9EV:�8;:�WXP�DB6:�?89:8C;�EY�4566�789::8�Z:8U::F�[9B\EF<�39BV:�<F=�]Ĉ 5B9:�39BV:�<F=�<6EF_�8;:�WX̀R�DB6:�?89:8C;�EY�G:68�GE56:V<9=�Z:8U::F�4566�789::8�<F=�7E58;?B=:�@6<\<X�J;B?�K9EL:C8�UB66�K9EVB=:�<�̀W�?;<9:=�5?:�K<8;�UB8;�Q�Z5YY:9�<6EF_�8;:�FE98;�?B=:�EY�4566�789::8�<F=�<6EF_�8;:�U:?8�?B=:�EY�G:68�GE56:V<9=�8E�CEDK6:8:�8;:�DB??BF_�6BFH�Z:8U::F�8;:�Y5F=:=�BDK9EV:D:F8?�<6EF_�4566�789::8�<8�[9B\EF<�39BV:�M>@N�`̀ROWWTa�<8�8;:�BF8:9?:C8BEF�EY�4566�789::8�<F=�G:68�GE56:V<9=M>@N�̀̀SQ̀STa�<F=�8;:�b<D:?�ABV:9�G9<FC;�J9<B6�M>@N�̀̀QcdSTX�J;B?�K9EL:C8�UB66�<6?E�K9EVB=:�<CC:??�D<F<_:D:F8�BDK9EV:D:F8?a�ZBH:a�K:=:?89B<Fa�<F=�89<F?B8�BDK9EV:D:F8?�<8�8;9::�89<F?B8�?8EK?X�%ef��fgh��i0�����0j%���kl%��m��%�j0�%��jk�0j��kiif�i%g��0g��nog����%nf�f�� S ` QapcpaQOOq������������������� SàROaPOcq���������������� SaRORaQPcq������������������
r�ABC;DEF=�4B_;U<s�t<66�uBF:�J9<B6�vDK9EV:D:F8? ABC;DEF= GBH:I@:= J;B?�:wB?8BF_�OX̀�DB6:�t<66�uBF:�J9<B6�K9EL:C8�M>@N�̀̀cRcQT�UB66�K9EVB=:�D568BDE=<6�89<F?KE98<8BEF�BDK9EV:D:F8?�<6EF_�>7�AE58:�̀�Z:8U::F�x<6D?6:s�GE56:V<9=�8E�G:66:D:<=:�AE<=a�BFC65=BF_�<�?;<9:=y5?:�K<8;a�C59Z�<F=�_588:9a�C9E??BF_�BDK9EV:D:F8?a�?B_F<6�DE=BYBC<8BEF?a�89<F?B8�?8EK�BDK9EV:D:F8?a�<F=�E8;:9�?89::8?C<K:�<D:FB8B:?a�YE66EUBF_�8;:�K9:Y:99:=�CE99B=E9�<?�B=:F8BYB:=�BF�z3{J|?�[?;6<F=�8E�@:8:9?Z59_�89<B6�?85=sX�%ef��fgh��i0�����0j%���kl%��m�nog����%nf�f� O O SdapP̀aRcQq������������������ Q̀aWWWaWWWq����������� OWadpPaPWRq���������������
N�NEDD:9C:�AE<=�y�tuJ�@;<?:�vv ABC;DEF= GBH:I@:= J;B?�K9EL:C8�UB66�K9EVB=:�D568BDE=<6�89<F?KE98<8BEF�BDK9EV:D:F8?�<F=�?89::8?C<K:�8E�8;:�OyDB6:�?89:8C;�EY�NEDD:9C:�AE<=�Y9ED�3:C<859�789::8�8E�G:66:D:<=:�AE<=a�BFC65=BF_�K9EVB=BF_�8;:�t<66�uBF:�J9<B6X�J;B?�K9EL:C8�UB66�K9EVB=:�<�F:U�8sKBC<6�?:C8BEF�8E�?5KKE98�<CC:??�8E�KE98y9:6<8:=�Y9B:_;8�DEV:D:F8?�BFC65=BF_�̀W|�?B=:U<6H�UB8;�R|�Z5YY:9?a�8UE�89<V:6�6<F:?�BF�:<C;�=B9:C8BEFa�=:=BC<8:=�6:Y8�859F�6<F:?a�C9E??BF_�BDK9EV:D:F8?a�<F=�E8;:9�?89::8?C<K:�<F=�89<B6�<D:FB8B:?X�0��f�fkg0j�j%}%�0hfgh�nog���kgj~ ` S RPacdOaPRcq����������������� ẀaSWcaWPSq������������� S̀aRRWaWP̀q������������������tuJ��AE58:�̀�tB66yBFy8;:y<̂K? N;:?8:9YB:6=GBH:I@:= J;B?�K9EL:C8�UB66�CEF?895C8�8;:�t<66�uBF:�J9<B6�<6EF_�AE58:�̀��̀T�xB66B?�A=�y�̂:88BF_?�uF�OT�3UB_;8�[V:�y�r66B;<D�[V:�ST�t<66BF_�N9::H�[V:�y�x<6D?6:s�G6V= d d OdaSPpaROcq����������������� OdaSPpaROcq������������J{J[u�N[Jr̂ {A��[x[A3 SPaRdSapRRq����������������

�}�0���-�/�*������/�/��������������/�����&&��/�/�01�/�

������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������  ¡
11



��������	��
�������������� ������ ������� ���������� ����������� !�"���#�� ����������� !�����$"���#�� �%���&����'()(*�������+� ��,-����'()(*�������+ %.�����/�01�/2�3�0���-�/�*�4����/�/��������������/�����&&��/�/�01�/�
56�789:8;�<=8>�?;@9=AB;BCDE FBC9GH= FGI:J8K L:B�@9=MBHD�JGNN�8>>�=CB�D:9=OI:�N8CB�JBEDP=OC>�=C�789:8;�<=8>�Q9=;�D:B�R8NST89D�U:=@@GCI�VBCDB9�EGIC8N�D=�VNBABN8C>�UD9BBDW�L:B�CBJ�D:9=OI:�N8CB�JGNN�PBH=;B�8�9GI:DSDO9C�N8CB�PBDJBBC�FOCI89K�<>6�8C>�VNBABN8C>�UD6�XBJ�H9=EEJ8NYE�8H9=EE�C=9D:Z�E=OD:Z�B8ED�8@@9=8H:BE�J[�\]�JG>B�;B>G8CE�Q=9�@B>BED9G8C�9BQOIB�8C>�@B>BED9G8C�EGIC8NE�8D�D:B�789:8;�<>6�̂�_9==Y�<=8>�GCDB9EBHDG=C6�XBJ�EG>BJ8NY�=C�P=D:�EG>BE�=Q�789:8;�<=8>�PBDJBBC�_9==Y�<=8>�8C>�R8NST89D�U:=@@GCI�VBCDB9�JGNN�PB�GCED8NNB>6�̀�H9=EEJ8NY�8C>�@B>BED9G8C�EGIC8N�BaOG@;BCD�JGNN�PB�GCED8NNB>�Q=9�8�JBED�NBI�H9=EEGCI6�XBJ�EG>BJ8NY�=C�B8ED�EG>B�=Q�_9==Y�<=8>�E=OD:�=Q�789:8;�<=8>�D=�DGB�GCD=�BbGEDGCI�EG>BJ8NY�CBDJ=9YW�79=AG>B�CBJ�EG>BJ8NY�=C�D:B�C=9D:�EG>B�=Q�789:8;�<=8>�8C>�FOCI89K�<=8>�D=�DGB�GCD=�D:B�@9=@=EB>�c8NN�dGCB�L98GN6�e%3%�0fghf�ijh���khel mn m mmZnooZpoqr������������������� sZottZtttr������������� uZsvvZpvnr������������������
_OEK�UD9BBD�5bDBCEG=C V:BEDB9QGBN>FGI:J8K 5bDBC>�BbGEDGCI�_OEK�UD�D=�w9=AB�<>6�?CED8NN�EGIC8N�=C�V=O9D:=OEB�<>�8D�_OEK�UD�JGD:�>O8N�NBQD�DO9C�N8CBE�8C>�9BHBGAGCI�N8CB�=C�_OEK�UD6�̀>>�EBH=C>�NBQD�DO9C�N8CB�D=�TO998K�xN>E�<>�y>O8N�NBQDE�JGD:�H=;PGCB>�D:9O[9GI:Dz6�̀>>�EG>BJ8NY�=C�_OEK�UD�8C>�V=O9D:=OEB�<>�JGD:�H9=EEJ8NYE6�e%3%�0fghf�ijh���khel mt s msZtmsZnsvr������������������� oZommZooor����������������� \ZnpuZunmr�������������������<=ODB�snn�U=OD:P=OC>�ÒbGNG89K�d8CB w==H:N8C> FGI:J8K ?CED8NN�8C�8ObGNG89K�N8CB�8N=CI�U=OD:P=OC>�<=ODB�snn�Q9=;�{U�sot�D=�LOHY8:=B�V9BBY�7YJK6��e%3%�0fghf�ijh���khel|� ms u mpZsquZtunr������������������ pZottZtttr������������� nZv\tZuspr������������������c�7=9D�=Q�}G9IGCG8�w8DBJ8K�?CDB9H:8CIB�8C>�UD9BBDEH8@B�?;@9=AB;BCDE <GH:;=C> FGI:J8K L:GE�@9=MBHD�JGNN�G;@9=AB�;ONDG;=>8N�E8QBDK�8C>�=@B98DG=CE�8N=CI�D:B�t6qS;GNB�ED9BDH:�=Q�V=;;B9HB�<=8>�PBDJBBC�_BNNE�̀HHBEE�<=8>�8C>�R8N;ENBK�_=ONBA89>�PK�@9=AG>GCI�8�o�EG>BJ8NY�JGD:�q�POQQB9Z�CBJ�>B>GH8DB>�DO9C�N8CBEZ�8C>�@B>BED9G8C�8C>�D98CEGD�8HHBEE�G;@9=AB;BCDE�8C>�H9=EEGCI�8HH=;;=>8DG=CE�8D�DJ=�BbGEDGCI�GCDB9EBHDG=CE�8C>�D:9BB�D98CEGD�ED=@E6�L:GE�@9=MBHD�JGNN�8NE=�G;@9=AB�;ONDG;=>8N�E8QBDK�8C>�=@B98DG=CE�8D�D:B�GCDB9EBHDG=C�=Q�V=;;B9HB�<=8>�8C>�R8N;ENBK�_=ONBA89>[?Svo�GCDB9H:8CIB�8D�5bGD�\v�PK�@9=AG>GCI�8�;ONDGN8CB�9=OC>8P=ODZ�N8CB�H=CQGIO98DG=C�G;@9=AB;BCDEZ�8C>�@B>BED9G8C�8HHBEE�G;@9=AB;BCDE�8C>�H9=EEGCI�8HH=;;=>8DG=CE6�79=MBHD�JGNN�G;@9=AB�8HHBEE�;8C8IB;BCD�PK�H=CE=NG>8DGCI�H=;;B9HG8N�BCD98CHBEZ�9B;=AGCI�s�BCD98CHBE�GC�D=D8NZ�8C>�PK�9BN=H8DGCI�8C�BbGEDGCI�8HHBEE�@=GCD�QO9D:B9�Q9=;�D:B�GCDB9EBHDG=C�=Q�V=;;B9HB�<=8>�8C>�R8N;ENBK�_=ONBA89>6�e%3%�0fghf�ijh���khel mm q mnZottZ\umr������������������ nZqvmZttmr��������������� mmZstoZ\p\r������������������
c8G9I9=OC>�<>[T8G>BCE�<>�?CDB9EBHDG=C�?;@9=AB;BCDE w==H:N8C> FGI:J8K L:GE�@9=MBHD�JGNN�GCED8NN�8�EGCINB�N8CB�9=OC>8P=OD�8D�D:B�GCDB9EBHDG=C�=Q�c8G9I9=OC>�<>�8C>�T8G>BCE�<>�yLBCD8DGAB�H=;@NBDDG=C�c~svz� mo o \Z\noZptur������������������� \Z\noZptur�������������� pZ\vqZmupr�������������������<=ODB�sot�8D�<=ODB�snn�?CDB9H:8CIB�?;@9=AB;BCDE w==H:N8C> FGI:J8K L:GE�@9=MBHD�JGNN�JG>BC�B8EDP=OC>�=QQ�98;@E�Q9=;�<D�snn�D=�RBED�_9=8>�UD�D=�@9=AG>B�8>>B>�H8@8HGDK�8C>�D=�8NN=J�Q9BB�QN=J�=Q�D98QQGH�Q9=;�<D�snn�=CD=�_9=8>�UD6�?CHNO>BE�JG>BCGCI�=C�_9=8>�UD9BBD�Q9=;�RGNYBE�<G>IB�789YJ8K�D=�_=C�UBH=O9E�789YJ8K6�UG>BJ8NY�G;@9=AB;BCDE�8N=CI�_9=8>6�L98QQGH�UGIC8N�;=>GQGH8DG=CE�8D�sot[snn�X_�=QQZ�sot[snn�U_�=QQZ�sot[RGNYBE�<G>IBZ�8C>�sot[_=C�EBH=O9E6�e%3%�0fghf�ijh���khel|� mq \ suZtsoZ\\nr����������������� mtZtttZtttr����������� muZpppZunqr������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ �

12



��������	��
�������������� ������ ������� ���������� ����������� !�"���#�� ����������� !�����$"���#�� �%���&����'()(*�������+� ��,-����'()(*�������+ %.�����/�01�/2�3�0���-�/�*�4����/�/��������������/�����&&��/�/�01�/�
56789�:;<==<>97?@A�567BC@D678 E9BFGH6 EGIAJ@K LAGM�NF6O9H8�GM�P6F�8A9�C9MGIB�@BC�H6BM8F7H8G6B�6P�@�MGBI?9Q?@B9�F67BC@D678�@8�8A9�GB89FM9H8G6B�6P�56789�:;�RS�TG??G@UMD7FI�5CVW�56789�==�RS�XGB9�YG?9�5CVW�@BC�>97?@A�5CZ�LA9�NF6O9H8�GBH?7C9M�MGC9J@?[�H6BB9H8G6BM�@?6BI�8A9�B6F8A�MGC9�6P�5678�:;�@BC�9@M8�@BC�J9M8�MGC9M�6P�XGB9�YG?9�56@C�86�?GB[�86�9\GM8GBI�MGC9J@?[�B98J6F[�@BC�JG??�F9?6H@89�@�]5L̂ �D7M�M86N�R_86N�̀a�b=cbV�86�SZ�XGB9�YG?9�56@C�PF6U�T9M8�_8F998Z�d%3%�0efge�hig���jgdk c: l ccWm:nWnolp������������������ oW;mbWo:qp�������������� c;W;nmWm=cp�����������������
56789�:;�RrG??@I9�6P�YGC?68AG@BV�̂6FFGC6F�SBA@BH9U9B8M Â9M89FPG9?CEGIAJ@K LAGM�NF6O9H8�JG??�H6BM8F7H8�@�MA@F9CQ7M9�N@8A�P6F�N9C9M8FG@BM�@BC�DGHKH?GM8M�@?6BI�8A9�M678A�MGC9�6P�56789�:;��PF6U�s?C�s889FC@?9�56@C�86�T66?FGCI9�56@C�@BC�PG??�MGC9J@?[�I@NM�6B�8A9�B6F8A�MGC9�6P�8A9�F6@CZ�LAGM�NF6O9H8�JG??�B@FF6J�8F@t9?�?@B9�JGC8AM�6B�56789�:;�86�cc�P998�8AF67IA�8A9�H6FFGC6F�86�F9C7H9�N9C9M8FG@B�HF6MMGBI�CGM8@BH9M�@BC�F9C7H9�t9AGH?9�MN99CM�@BC�GBM8@??�@�F@GM9C�U9CG@B�8AF67IA�8A9�YGC?68AG@B�rG??@I9�D98J99B�Y8Z�uGMI@A�aFGt9�@BC�s?C�s889FC@?9�56@CZ�vGB@??KW�8AGM�NF6O9H8�JG??�GBM8@??�@�MGIB@?�@8�8A9�GB89FM9H8G6B�6P�56789�:;�@BC�]F6t9�EG??�56@CZ�̀BM8@??�MG\�7BMGIB@?Gw9C�UGCQD?6H[�N9C9M8FG@B�HF6MMGBIM�86�GBH?7C9�HF6MMJ@?[MW�xax�F@UNM�@BC�9G8A9F�@�59H8@BI7?@F�5@NGC�v?@MAGBI�>9@H6B�R55v>V�6F�@�u9C9M8FG@B�EKDFGC�>9@H6B�RuE>VW�86�D9�C989FUGB9C�C7FGBI�NF9?GUGB@FK�9BIGB99FGBI�d%3%�0efge�hig���jgdk : o ==Wm:nW=bmp����������������� b;WoqbWcc:p�������������� bbW:o;W;=cp����������������
x�E7??�_8F998�uA@M9�̀̀�Ry_=:;V 5GHAU6BC EGIAJ@K LAGM�NF6O9H8�JG??�GUNF6t9�8A9�8KNGH@?�M9H8G6B�6P�E7??�_8F998�PF6U�̂AGNN9BA@U�u@F[J@K�86�E9K�56@C�DK�NF6tGCGBI�8J6�8AF67IA�8F@t9?�?@B9M�GB�9@HA�CGF9H8G6BW�@�F@GM9C�U9CG@BW�@BC�C9CGH@89C�87FB�?@B9M�@?6BI�8A9��UG?9�H6FFGC6FZ�LA9�NF6O9H8�JG??�F9C7H9�8A9�B7UD9F�6P�9B8F@BH9M�@BC�U9CG@B�HF6MMGBIM�R@HH9MM�U@B@I9U9B8VW�NF6tGC9�M@P9F�@HH6UU6C@8G6BM�P6F�N96N?9�JA6�J@?[�@BC�DG[9�GBH?7CGBI�M8F998MH@N9W�c;�MA@F9CQ7M9�N@8AW�@BC�q�MGC9J@?[W�@BC�DG[9W�N9C9M8FG@B�z�@HH9MM�GUNF6t9U9B8M�86�AGIA�PF9{79BHK�8F@BMG8�M9FtGH9Z�d%3%�0efge�hig���jgdk c= n b;Wlo=Wbnbp����������������� mWqqoWl:lp�������������� qWb=qW;:;p������������������
56789�c;:�aGt9FIGBI�aG@U6BC�̀B89FHA@BI9�uF6O9H8 X9J�|9B8 EGIAJ@K LA9�NF6N6M9C�aGt9FIGBI�aG@U6BC�̀B89FHA@BI9�RaàV�H6BPGI7F@8G6B�F9{7GF9M�8A9�H6BM8F7H8G6B�6P�@�B9J�8J6Q?@B9�B6F8AD67BC�DFGCI9�@?6BI�56789�c;:�JG8A�@�MA@F9CQ7M9�N@8A�M9N@F@89C�DK�F@G?GBIZ��LA9�9\GM8GBI�8J6Q?@B9�DFGCI9�JG??�D9�F9N7FN6M9C�86�H@FFK�M678AD67BC�8F@PPGHZ��5GIA8Q6PQJ@K�JG??�B99C�86�D9�@H{7GF9C�PF6U�NF6N9F8G9M�GB�8A9�_T�@BC�XT�{7@CF@B8M�6P�8A9�GB89FHA@BI9�GB�@CCG8G6B�86�8A9�?@BC�C9CGH@89C�DK�8A9�>7HQ99}M�N@FH9?�P6F�H6BM8F7H8G6B�6P�B9J�F6@C<F@UN�GBPF@M8F7H87F9�86�M7NN6F8�8A9�U6t9U9B8�6P�t9AGH7?@F�8F@PPGH�8AF67IA�8A9�aGt9FIGBI�aG@U6BC�̀B89FHA@BI9Z� m c; o:W=qlWn::p����������������� bqW;;;W;;;p����������� Qp�����������������������������
5L�boo�_678AD67BC�̂Qa�56@C�JG8A�]9BG86�5@UN Â9M89FPG9?CEGIAJ@K LAGM�NF6O9H8�J67?C�9\89BC�bQ?@B9�M678AD67BC�boo�H6??9H86FQCGM8FGD786F�F6@C�@NNF6\GU@89?K�bW;=;�P998�M678A�6P�]9BG86�56@CW�8KNGH@?�M9H8G6B�JG??�H6BMGM8�6P�bQ?@B9M�6B�̂Qa�F6@C�@BC�b�?@B9M�6B�U@GB?GB9�5L�booZ�LA9�FGIA8�U6M8�̂Qa�?@B9�JG??�U9FI9W�F9C7HGBI�8A9�8KNGH@?�M9H8G6B�86�=�?@B9M�6B�5L�boo�M678A�6P�]9BG86�56@CZ�LA9�=Q?@B9�M9H8G6B�H6B8GB79M�@NNF6\GU@89?K�bWol;�P998�M678A�JG8A�8A9�FGIA8U6M8�?@B9�8KGBI�GB86�8A9�C6JBM8F9@U�5L�boo�86�T>�5L�=:;�F@UN�NF6O9H8�~yû �cccm:lW�GUNF6t9U9B8�IF@NAGH�@88@HA9C�W�HF9@8GBI�@�H6B8GB767M�@7\G?G@FK�?@B9�86�5L�=:;Z�6̂BM8F7H8�6B9Q?@B9�_>�6PPQF@UN�PF6U�5L�boo�̂Qa�F6@C�86�T>�]9BG86�56@CZ b cc qqW=m;Wqq;p����������������� mbW;bnWmq;p����������� Qp�����������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �

13



��������	��
�������������� ������ ������� ���������� ����������� !�"���#�� ����������� !�����$"���#�� �%���&����'()(*�������+� ��,-����'()(*�������+ %.�����/�01�/2�3�0���-�/�*�4����/�/��������������/�����&&��/�/�01�/�
56789:;�5<=>7<?�@A:;BC;CD�58<E;�F G8;E:;=H9;ICJ9K87<? @A:;BC�56789:;�5<=>7<?D�<E�<�H6L=MI<B;�=6<CD�:6�N66I=9CK;�O6<CP�Q�R<=:9<IMSI6T;=I;<H�9B:;=S8<BK;�9E�R=6R6E;C�<:�G8<=:;=�G6I6B?�5<=>7<?P�QB�<:MK=<C;�9B:;=E;S:96B�9E�R=6R6E;C�H6=�N66I=9CK;�O6<CD�789S8�S<B�<SS6UU6C<:;�<�HL:L=;�K=<C;ME;R<=<:;C�9B:;=S8<BK;P�VT;=R<EE;E�R=6R6E;C�<:�W=<BC;=U9II�5<=>7<?�<BC�N<:;=U9II�5<=>7<?P X YZ Y[[D\]XD̂_[�̀�������������� XaDaaaDaaa�̀���������� M�̀����������������������������O6L:;�Zbb�c6L:8d6LBC�J<=C�c86LIC;=�OLBB9BK�e<B; f66S8I<BC J9K87<? FBE:<II�<�J<=C�c86LIC;=�OLBB9BK�e<B;D�6=�<�5<=:�g9U;�c86LIC;=�hE;�e<B;D�<I6BK�c6L:8d6LBC�O6L:;�Zbb�H=6U�N;E:�G=;;>�5>7?�:6�JLKL;B6:�g=<9I�iO6L:;�_YYj [ YX ]̂Db]ZDYa[�̀����������������� Y]DaaaDaaa�̀����������� M�̀����������������������������W�k6=;E:�J9II�QT;BL;�58<E;�FF O9S8U6BC J9K87<? g89E�=;lL;E:�9E�H6=�<CC9:96B<I�I;T;=<K9BK�HLBCE�H6=�<B�;A9E:9BK�GmgQ�R=6n;S:P�g8;�k6=;E:�J9II�QT;BL;�58<E;�FF�R=6n;S:�79II�9UR=6T;�ULI:9U6C<I�E<H;:?�<BC�6R;=<:96BE�<I6BK�:8;�6B;�U9I;�E;S:96B�6H�k6=;E:�J9II�QT;BL;�H=6U�56789:;�5<=>7<?�:6�o6=S8;E:;=�O6<CP�g8;�R=6n;S:�79II�R=6T9C;�<�=<9E;C�U;C9<B�H6=�<SS;EE�U<B<K;U;B:�<BC�C;C9S<:;C�:L=B�I<B;ED�dLHH;=;C�d9>;�I<B;E�9B�;<S8�C9=;S:96BD�E9C;7<I>�<I6BK�:8;�S6==9C6=�78;=;�:8;=;�9E�B6B;�:6C<?D�S=6EE9BK�9UR=6T;U;B:E�<:�:8=;;�9B:;=E;S:96BE�<BC�6:8;=�E:=;;:ES<R;�<U;B9:9;E�9BSILC9BK�I9K8:9BKP�g8;�R=6n;S:�<IE6�9UR=6T;E�<SS;EE�H6=�R;6RI;�786�7<I>�<BC�d9>;�:6�89K8�H=;lL;BS?�:=<BE9:�:6�:;B�:=<BE9:�E:6REP _ Ŷ X̂DYYaDb[Z�̀����������������� YaD]̂ D̂[\X�̀����������� M�̀����������������������������
JLKL;B6:�O6<C�iG=<Bd;S>�OC�M�O6d96LE�OCj�G6BK;E:96B�<BC�c<H;:?�FUR=6T;U;B: G8;E:;=H9;ICJ9K87<? g89E�R=6n;S:�79II�<CC�6B;�;<E:d6LBC�:8=6LK8�I<B;�6B�JLKL;B6:�O6<C�H=6U�7;E:�6H�O6d96LE�OC�:6�:8;�9B:;=E;S:96B�79:8�G=<Bd;S>�OC�<BC�6B;�7;E:d6LBC�:8=6LK8�I<B;�H=6U�7;E:�6H�5=6U;B<C;�5>7?�:6�7;E:�6H�O6d96LE�OCP�G6BE:=LS:�OMGL:�9B:;=E;S:96B�<:�JLKL;B6:pG=<Bd;S>�9B:;=E;S:96BP�QCC�E9C;7<I>�<I6BK�:8;�I9U9:E�6H�:8;�R=6n;S:�<E�7;II�<E�R;C;E:=9<B�S=6EE9BKE�<:�56I6�5>7?D�G=<Bd;S>�<BC�O6d96LE�=6<CEP�QCC�d9>;�I<B;�6B�d6:8�E9C;E�6H�JLKL;B6:�OC�H=6U�56I6�5>7?�:6�G=<Bd;S>�OCP Y_ Y] YXD[Z]D]Z[�̀����������������� YYDZYZDXbY�̀��������������� M�̀����������������������������O6L:;�X\a�iN66CI<>;�m9II<K;�5>7?�M�V::;=C<I;�OCj�N9C;B9BK G8;E:;=H9;ICJ9K87<? g89E�=;lL;E:�9E�H6=�<CC9:96B<I�I;T;=<K9BK�HLBCE�H6=�<B�;AE9:9BK�GmgQ�R=6n;S:P�g89E�R=6n;S:�79II�79C;B�O:�X\a�:6�E9A�I<B;E�H=6U�G6Ed?�OC�:6�V::;=C<I;�OC�79:8�=9K8:�:L=B�I<B;E�<:�k6A�GILd�5>7?D�V::;=C<I;�OCpG6Ed?�m9II<K;�o=D�<BC�J<UR:6B�5<=>�o=�<BC�:8;�<CC9:96B�6H�<�E;S6BC�I;H:�:L=B�I<B;�<:�J<UR:6B�5<=>�o=P�G6BE:=LS:�R;C;E:=9<B�<SS6UU6C<:96BED�S=6EE9BKE�q�E9KB<IE�<I6BK�O:P�X\a�<BC�<:�k6A�GILd�5>7?pJ<UR:6B�5<=>�o=�<BC�N66CI<>;�m9II<K;�5>7?P� ] Y\ Z[D]_[DYX̂�̀����������������� YaD_]aDaaa�̀����������� M�̀����������������������������O:P�X\apN<IBL:�f=6T;�OC�FB:;=E;S:96B�FUR=6T;U;B: J<B6T;= J9K87<? G6BCLS:�<B�9B:;=E;S:96B�<I:;=B<:9T;E�<B<I?E9E�RILE�Yaar�5=;I9U9B<=?�@BK9B;;=9BKD�O9K8:M6HMN<?D�<BC�G6BE:=LS:96B�6H�:8;�9B:;=E;S:96B�<:�O6L:;�X\a�is;S8<B9SET9II;�gL=BR9>;j�<BC�N<IBL:�f=6T;�O6<CP Y[ Y_ YaD]̂aDY]a�̀����������������� YaD]̂aDY]a�̀������������ M�̀����������������������������
tu�vwx�yy�z{|v}�v~�����~��v��v}�w��v��vw���~��w�v~��u���������u����wv~�u��v{|v}�v~�|�u�v}��w}�v~��vyy���u�v}���v�v�����������~���u�v}���uw���v�v�����������v���u�|v~����}��v�u��yy���v����������~����w}v����u�������v�~v�v����v~������v���������� �

14



��������	��
�������������� ������ ������� ���������� ����������� !�"���#�� ����������� !�����$"���#�� �%���&����'()(*�������+� ��,-����'()(*�������+ %.�����/�01�/2�3�0���-�/�*�4����/�/��������������/�����&&��/�/�01�/�
56789�:;<=�>8?@�A<=87B?<?C9D E?C8FG7 EFH6I@J K6?�=;8=7D?�7L�96?�=87M?G9�FD�97�@NN8?DD�@CN�F<=87B?�96?�FN?C9FLF?N�C??ND�7L�96?�98@CD=789@9F7C�C?9I78O�FC�96?�56789�:;<=�@8?@P�K6?�FC9?8D9@9?Q�FC9?8G6@CH?DQ�@CN�@89?8F@R�C?9I78OQ�I6FG6�G7CDFD9D�7L�D?G9F7CD�7L�ASTUQ�ASVWXQ�@CN�Y5�VXZ�@8?�?[=?8F?CGFCH�7=?8@9F7C@R�@CN�D@L?9J�G6@RR?CH?D�@CN�@8?�RF<F9?N�FC�G@=@GF9JP�K7�L@GFRF9@9?�@GG?DDF\FRF9JQ�<F9FH@9?�G7CH?D9F7CQ�@CN�F<=87B?�D@L?9JQ�E?C8FG7�]7;C9J�FD�=87=7DFCH�97�N?DFHC�@CN�G7CD98;G9�@�C?I�FC9?8G6@CH?�@9�96?�FC9?8D?G9F7C�7L�̂7896�_@J97C�̀7@N�@CN�AC9?8D9@9?�TU�FC�96?�56789�:;<=�@8?@a�8?G7CD98;G9�96?�?[FD9FCH�FC9?8G6@CH?�@9�bP�c87@N�598??9�@CN�AC9?8D9@9?�TUa�G7CD98;G9�F<=87B?<?C9D�7C�bP�c87@N�598??9a�@CN�<@O?�F<=87B?<?C9D�97�@�D?G9F7C�7L�AC9?8D9@9?�VWXP� d de VfUQTUZQggTh�������������� fXQZZZQZZZh����������� Sh�����������������������������
:@86@<�̀7@N�A<=87B?<?C9D�E7RRJ�EFRR�97�K68??�]67=9�̀N E?C8FG7 EFH6I@J K6FD�=87M?G9�IFRR�LFRR�FC�DFN?I@RO�@R7CH�\796�DFN?D�7L�̂P�:@86@<�̀7@N�L87<�i;F7GG@DFC�̀7@N�97�K68??�]67=9�̀7@NP�j96?8�F<=87B?<?C9D�FCGR;N?�8?<7B@R�7L�DRF=�R@C?D�@9�i;F7GG@DFC�̀N�@CN�̂P�:@86@<�FC9?8D?G9F7CQ�@CN�FCD9@RR@9F7C�7L�=?N?D98F@C�@9SH8@N?�G87DDFCHD�@9�96?�DFHC@RFk?N�FC9?8D?G9F7C�IF96FC�96?�=87M?G9�RF<F9DP�K6?�=?N?D98F@C�F<=87B?<?C9D�@9�96?�DFHC@RFk?N�FC9?8D?G9F7C�IFRR�FCGR;N?�>l>�8@<=DQ�=;D6�\;997CD�@CN�=?N?D98F@C�DFHC@R�6?@NDP�K6?�?[FD9FCH�<?NF@C�7C�m@D98FNH?�̀7@N�nm@D9ob?D9p�IFRR�\?�?[9?CN?NQ�@CN�96?�FC9?8D?G9F7C�7L�m@D98FNH?�7̀@N�nm@D9ob?D9p�@CN�m@D98FNH?�̀7@N�n̂7896o57;96p�97�\?�<7NFLF?N�97�@�8FH69SFCo8FH69S7;9�G7CLFH;8@9F7CP Vg dW dZQZedQXXTh������������������ VQXZZQZZZh������������� Sh�����������������������������
9̀P�Xô?I�jD\78C?�K;8C=FO?�A<=87B?<?C9D E?C8FG7 EFH6I@J K6?�=87M?G9�IFRR�G7CD98;G9�C?G?DD@8J�F<=87B?<?C9D�@R7CH�96?�̂?I�jD\78C?�K;8C=FO?�@CN�7̀;9?�X�G788FN78D�FC�?@D9?8C�E?C8FG7�]7;C9J�97�D;==789�L;9;8?�98@LLFG�H87I96�@CN�98@CD=789@9F7C�C??ND�FC�96?�@8?@P�A<=87B?<?C9D�FCGR;N?qrstuvw�xvy�z{|}~wv���~w�t�v��}��}�~���wv{���}��v����}�st��t��{|�~����vw�v��yt���{tuvy���{�7C�\796�DFN?DPr�}w{�~�������}�~���wv�|~tu�v�}w�xvy�z{|}~wv���~w�t�v�}�v~�����~�t����~u�r�v��t�w���v��}��v����wu�st��t��{|�~��tw�v~{v��t}w��st��t��{|�~����vw�v��wu������v~���~vv��FC9?8D?G9F7Ca�̂?I�jD\78C?�K;8C=FO?�@CN�̀7;9?�X�FC9?8D?G9F7Ca�@CN�̀7;9?�X�@CN�jD\78C?�K;8C=FO?�AC9?8D?G9F7CP�mB@R;@9?�FCC7B@9FB?�FC9?8D?G9F7CDPr�w��w�v��}wwv��t�t����}~��vuv{�~t�w{��|t����v{���~�w{t����wu��v�t��v{�|v�yvvw�st��t��{|�~���>B?C;?ô?I�jD\78C?�K;8C=FO?�@CN�̀7;9?�XP e VZ dfTQfVVQdZZh���������������� UdQgeZQfZTh������������ Sh�����������������������������
Y5�TZ�@CN�l78D?9�̀7@N�AC9?8D?G9F7C�A<=87B?<?C9 :7I6@9@C EFH6I@J ?̀G7CLFH;8?�96?�FC9?8D?G9F7C�7L�YP5P�̀7;9?�TZ�@CN�l78D?9�̀7@N�97�@�̀]YK�IF96�9I7�C7896\7;CN�8FH69S9;8C�R@C?DP�̀?G7CLFH;8?�96?�<FC78�@==87@G6?D�@9�96?�FC9?8D?G9F7C�7L�YP5P�7̀;9?�TZ�@CN�c@99?8D7C�̀7@N�97�7CRJ�@RR7I�8FH69SFCo8FH69S7;9�@CN�8?G7CLFH;8?�96?�G87DD7B?8�@9�96FD�FC9?8D?G9F7C�97�@RR7I�?@D9\7;CN�YS9;8CDP�]7CD98;G9�@�I?D9\7;CN�YS9;8C�@8?@�@==87[F<@9?RJ�UZZ�L??9�I?D9�7L�96?�FC9?8D?G9F7C�7L�YP5P�̀7;9?�TZ�@CN�l78D?9�̀7@NP VZ Vd dVQfgdQXTgh������������������� dVQfgdQXTgh�������������� Sh�����������������������������9̀P�d�@CN�>D6G@O?�AC9?8D?G9F7C >D6R@CN EFH6I@J K6?�̀7;9?�d�@CN�>D6G@O?�̀7@N�DFHC@R�@CN�=?N?D98F@C�F<=87B?<?C9D�=87BFN?�@�=?N?D98F@C�G7CC?G9F7C�L87<�96?�FC9?8D?G9F7C�97�96?�=87=7D?N�n�ljK�:87MP�ZZdSddTSVeTp�̀7;9?�d�IFN?CFCH�F<=87B?<?C9D�C7896�7L�>D6G@O?�̀7@NP�K6?�=87M?G9�=87=7D?D�6FH6�BFDF\FRF9J�G87DDI@ROD�@CN�=?N?D98F@C�=;D6�\;997CD�7C�@RR�R?HD�7L�96?�FC9?8D?G9F7C�@CN�>l>�G;8\�8@<=D�7C�@RR�G78C?8DP VU VV UQTUXQgVdh�������������������� VQTVVQZfeh�������������� Sh���������������������������������� �¡¡�¢£¤�¥��¦��§��¦����̈�¥�����©ª�����¦«ª���¦�����¬�̈��¬��®���¦����£¤�¥��¦�¤��«�¥���¥̄�¦ª̈�¡¡�°��«�¥��±���¬��²�³��¦�°��«�¥��́����±���¬��²�³�����µ��ª¤�¦�®¶�¥���µ��¶¡¡�·̄���¬�̈��ª¦¬µ��¥���¬��§¬̈̈�®��¦����̧¬�¦�®¶��̄���ª̈̈�́¹·º »

15



��������	��
�������������� ������ ������� ���������� ����������� !�"���#�� ����������� !�����$"���#�� �%���&����'()(*�������+� ��,-����'()(*�������+ %.�����/�01�/2�3�0���-�/�*�4����/�/��������������/�����&&��/�/�01�/�
56�789:;<=�>?@ABCAD@EF?�>GHBFIAGA?@ JFKLM@M? NEOLKMP QLEC�HBFHFCMR�SMC�BADFGGA?TAT�E?�M�U8<V�:WXQ�C@YTPZ�KERR�DF?C@BYD@�M?�[\5Q�M@�@LA�E?@ABCAD@EF?�F]�5̂6̂�[FY@A�78�S;?TABCF?�NEOLKMPZ�M?T�6@M@A�[FY@A�<=�SXRT�_YD̀E?OLMG�[FMTZa�KE@L�BARM@AT�EGHBFIAGA?@C�M@�@LA�E?@ABCAD@EF?�F]�5̂6̂�[FY@A�78�S;?TABCF?�NEOLKMPZ�M?T�6@M@A�[FY@A�78=�S;DMTAGP�[FMTZa�E?DRYTE?O�MTTE@EF?MR�@YB?�RM?AĈ U< U= <=aU=ba8bcd������������������ <=aU=ba8bcd������������� ed�����������������������������f̂�JMBLMG�[FMT�M?T�gFFTGM?�[FMT�>?@ABCAD@EF?�>GHBFIAGA?@C NA?BEDF NEOLKMP QLA�HBFhAD@�HBFHFCAC�@F�HBFIETA�M�CLMBAT�YCA�HM@L�M?T�CETAKMR̀�Ai@A?CEF?�MRF?O�gFFTGM?�[FMT�]BFG�NY?OMBP�[FMT�@F�f̂�JMBLMG�[FMT̂ UU Uc <cajUUaV7jd����������������� <8a888a888d����������� ed�����������������������������QXQ;k�\;QflX[m�;g;[W jVajU8aUUnd����������������

op�qrs�tt�uvwqx�qy��z��y��q�{qx�r��q|}qr���y~}r�qy��p�����{���p����rqy�p��qvwqx�qy�w�p~qx��rx�qy}{qtt���p~qx���q�q�����������y���p~qx���pr���q�q�����������q���p}wqy����x��q�p��tt���q�����{��}�y����rxq����p�z�{{��q�yq�q����qy������q��}{{����� 	
16



��������	��
�������������� ������ ������� ���������� ����������� !�"���#�� ����������� !�����$"���#�� �%���&����'()(*�������+� ��,-����'()(*�������+ %.�����/�01�/2�3�0���-�/�*�4����/�/��������������/�����&&��/�/�01�/�567�89:;<=>?@6�ABCDE�5F�G?6EBHEI6JC?�GKLBCDEKE?6�M�9:N O=?CDEB PBE>JKJ?=BQ�R?SJ?EEBJ?S TC?F@I6�=?�J?6EBHEI6JC?�=>6EB?=6JDEH�=?=>QHJH�L>@H�9:N�PRMU?>Q�P>=?H�CV�6WE�J?6EBHEI6JC?�=6�5C@6E�89:�XYEIW=?JIHDJ>>E�Z@B?LJ[E\�=?F�<=>?@6�ABCDE�5C=F7 8 ] ]̂_̀:::a����������������������� ]̂_̀:::a������������������ _̂:̀ _̂:a���������������������GMb_�=?F�P=BW=K�5F�G?6EBIW=?SE OE?BJIC PBE>JKJ?=BQ�R?SJ?EEBJ?S ZWJH�BEc@EH6�dC@>F�H@LLCB6�E?DJBC?KE?6=>�=?F�LBE>JKJ?=BQ�E?SJ?EEBJ?S�=I6JDJ6JEH�6C�=FD=?IE�6WE�BEICKKE?FEF�JKLBCDEKE?6H�VBCK�6WE�P=BW=K;GMb_�G?6EBIW=?SE�eIIEHH�5ELCB6�XGe5\�=?F�WE>L�6C�=FFBEHH�SECKE6BJI�FEVJIJE?IJEH�=?F�H=VE6Q�JHH@EH�=6�6WJH�J?6EBIW=?SE7� ] f _̀̂ :_̀:::a������������������� g̀:9f̀_::a�������������� 8̀9g_̀:8_a������������������e6>EE�5F;YE=FCdhBJFSE�5F�G?6EBHEI6JC?�GKLBCDEKE?6 O=?CDEB PBE>JKJ?=BQ�R?SJ?EEBJ?S G?6EBHEI6JC?�=>6EB?=6JDEH�=?=>QHJH�L>@H�9:N�PRMU?>Q�L>=?H�VCB�6WE�e6>EE�5C=F�=?F�YE=FCdhBJFSE�5C=F�G?6EBHEI6JC?7 g 8 ]̂_̀:::a����������������������� ]̂_̀:::a������������������ Ma�����������������������������iE>>dCCF�TC??EI6CB�M�PR�U?>Q TWEH6EBVJE>FPBE>JKJ?=BQ�R?SJ?EEBJ?S jEDE>CL�8:N�L>=?H�VCB�=�?Ed�BC=Fd=Q�hE6dEE?�iE>>dCCF�5C=F�=?F�<J>>JH�5C=F7 f g 8̀:::̀:::a������������������ 8̀:::̀:::a������������� Ma�����������������������������ZUZek�TeZRAU5l�e<e5j g̀8b_̀̂ m_a������������������

no�pqr�ss�tuvpw�px��y��x��p�zpw�q��p{|pq���x}|q�px��o��~��z��~o����qpx�o��puvpw�px�v�o}pw��qw�px|zpss���o}pw���p�p�~���������x���o}pw���oq���p�p�~���������p���o|vpx����w��p�o��ss���p��~��z��|�x~���qwp���~o�y~zz��p�xp�p��~�px������p��|zz����� �
17



��������	��
�������������� ������ ������� ���������� ����������� !�"���#�� ����������� !�����$"���#�� �%���&����'()(*�������+� ��,-����'()(*�������+ %.�����/�01�/2�3�0���-�/�*�4����/�/��������������/�����&&��/�/�01�/�567�89:;<=>?@6�ABCDE�5F�G?6EBHEI6JC?�GKLBCDEKE?6�M�N>6EB?=6JDEH O=?CDEB P6@FQ RC?F@I6�=?�J?6EBHEI6JC?�=>6EB?=6JDEH�=?=>QHJH�CS�6TE�J?6EBHEI6JC?�=6�5C@6E�89:�UVEIT=?JIHDJ>>E�W@B?LJXEY�=?F�<=>?@6�ABCDE�5C=F7 Z Z Z[9\:::]���������������������� Z[9\:::]����������������� M]�����������������������������Ŵ WN_�RNẀ Â 5a�N<N5b M]�����������������������������

cd�efg�hh�ijkel�em��n��m��e�oel�f��epqef���mrqf�em��d��st�o��sdt�u�fem�dt�ejkel�em�k�drel��flvemqoehh�w�drel��xete�s��y�tz��tm�w�drel��{df��xete�s��y�tz���e�|�dqkem�u}�l��e|d�}hh�~ve��st�o��qtmst|�flet��sd�nsoo�ue�me�e��stem�u}��ve��qoo�{�~� �
18



��������	��
�������������� ������ ������� ���������� ����������� !�"���#�� ����������� !�����$"���#�� �%���&����'()(*�������+� ��,-����'()(*�������+ %.�����/�01�/2�3�0���-�/�*�4����/�/��������������/�����&&��/�/�01�/�
56789�:6;89�<=> =?@9A6BC >7DBE?8 >9?E�F76GH@8�I?JJ�?B876C;@H�D�BHI�K;E�7DF?C�87DBE?8�J?BH�89D8�@6BBH@8E�56789E?CH�DBC�:6;89E?CH�=?@9A6BC�I?89�9?L9M@DFD@?8NO�9?L9MP7HQ;HB@N�K;E�EH7R?@HS�>9H�56789M:6;89�<=>�I?JJ�?AF76RH�87DRHJ�8?AHEO�CHJ?RH7�KH88H7�P7HQ;HB@NO�DBC�F76R?CH�HB9DB@HC�87DBE?8�DAHB?8?HE�86�FDEEHBLH7ES�>9?E�F76GH@8�DFFJ?@D8?6B�?E�P67�P;BC?BL�P67�@6BE87;@8?6B�6P�E86FE�DBC�689H7�76DCIDNO�E?LBDJO�DBC�FHCHE87?DB�EDPH8N�?AF76RHAHB8E�P67�89H�TSUMA?JH�EH@8?6B�DJ6BL�V9DAKH7JDNBH�WRHB;H�P76A�89H�XHB7?@6�V6;B8N�J?BH�YWZDJHD[\?JAH7]�86�̂6AKD7CN�:87HH8S�>9H�?AF76RHAHB8E�I?JJ�?B@J;CH�;F�86�_̀�<=>�E86F�J6@D8?6BEO�87DPP?@�E?LBDJ�?AF76RHAHB8E�?B@J;C?BL�Q;H;H�G;AFE�DBC�87DBE?8�E?LBDJ�F7?67?8NO�E?CHIDJa�DBC�WbW�D@@HEE?KJH�7DAF�?AF76RHAHB8EO�FHCHE87?DB�@76EE?BL�?AF76RHAHB8EO�D@@HEE�ADBDLHAHB8O�DBC�E87HH8E@DFH�86�@6JJH@8?RHJN�?AF76RH�87DBEF678D8?6BO�JDBC�;EHO�DBC�9HDJ89�86LH89H7�86�ADaH�DB�D@8?RH�F;KJ?@�E87HH8S�c%3%�0defd�ghf���ifcj _ _ __̀OkUlÒTTm���������������� _UOn_UOop̀m�������������� _oOoò O_kom�����������������
q;JEH�rs8HBE?6B�\HE8�Yt=>V] XHB7?@6 >7DBE?8 >9H�F76F6EHC�F76GH@8�?B@J;CHE�89H�CHE?LBO�7?L98M6PMIDN�DQ;?E?8?6BO�DBC�@6BE87;@8?6B�6P�89H�Hs8HBE?6B�6P�t=>VuE�v>9H�q;JEHv�<;E�=DF?C�>7DBE?8�76;8H�86�89H�?B8H7EH@8?6B�6P�qD79DA�=6DC�DBC�\HE8�<76DC�:87HH8S�>9H�F76GH@8�I?JJ�?B@J;CH�D�A?B?A;A�6P�_STU�K?C?7H@8?6BDJ�A?JHE�6P�CHC?@D8HC�E9D7HC�K;E�DBC�K?aH�JDBHEO�E?LBDJ�A6C?P?@D8?6BE�DBC�@6AA;B?@D8?6BO�H?L98�Yo]�K;E�E8D8?6BE�I?89�JHRHJ�K6D7C?BLO�DBC�D�8;7BD76;BC�J66F�D8�89H�HBC�6P�89H�J?BHS T T UkÒ_kOÙwm����������������� _̀OknTOpUwm������������� Mm�����������������������������
b6IB86IB�>7DBE?8�X;K =?@9A6BC >7DBE?8 9?E�F76GH@8�I?JJ�F76R?CH�P67�D�FH7ADBHB8�K7?@aMDBCMA678D7�b6IB86IB�>7DBE?8�X;K�PD@?J?8NS�t=>V�?AFJHAHB8HC�D�ENE8HA�7HCHE?LBO�?B@J;E?RH�6P�89H�q;JEH�<=>�J?BH�?B�x;BH�Tw_oS�>9H�7HCHE?LB�@7HD8HC�EHRH7DJ�ADG67�J6@DJ�76;8H�DBC�<=>�87DBEPH7�B6CHE�8976;L9�89H�CHE?LB�6P�@6BE6J?CD8HC�DBC�IDJa?BL�F76s?A?8N�6P�<=>�E8D8?6BE�DBC�P?RH�67�A67H�P?sHC�76;8H�K;E�E86FE�YV6BRHB8?6B�VHB8H7�:8D8?6BO�\?JJ6I�̂DIB�:8D8?6BO�:96@a6H�<6886A�:8D8?6BO�DBC�:@?HB@H�y;EH;A�:8D8?6B]S��zB�DKEHB@H�6P�D�AD?B�87DBEPH7�E8D8?6B�?B�89H�C6IB86IB�D7HDO�89H�7HCHE?LB�E87;@8;7HC�89H�ENE8HA�86�9DRH�8I6�ADG67�87DBEPH7�D7HDE�P67�J6@DJ�76;8HE�;8?J?Z?BL�6B�E87HH8�7?L98M6PMIDN�DBC�EF7DIJ?BL�EHRH7DJ�V?8N�KJ6@aE�C;H�86�@;77HB8�7?L98M6PMIDN�;EHO�Hs?E8?BL�E87HH8�CHE?LBO�FHCHE87?DB�EDPH8NO�J?L98?BLO�DBC�76;8?BL�HPP?@?HB@NS�<H8IHHB�89HEH�8I6�87DBEPH7�EF7DIJ�D7HDEO�;FID7CE�6P�nOUww�@6BBH@8?6BE�DBC[67�P?BDJ�CHE8?BD8?6BE�D7H�ADCH�FH7�IHHaCDNS l l lTÒwwOwwwm���������������� _TÒwwOwwwm������������ Mm�����������������������������

>{>Ŵ �VW>rt{=|�W\W=b _oOoò O_kom�����������������}~)���*���*�������������i�0c�%��%��%��0�0����0��0d%
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������¡����� ��¡���¢��������������� �����������������������£������¡�����������¤¢¥ ¦

19



DRAFT

ID Title Estimate Non-CVTA Funds Previous FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 Total CVTA Balance to Complete Notes

CVTA-0001
#FLT - DB 2 - Chesterfield, Petersburg, Colonial Heights (Segments 1A - 

2B)
72,440,000$    42,457,388$               25,000,000$                 25,000,000$      4,982,612$                     

Moved $25M from DB3 to DB2 per CVTA 

Action (Sept 2023); temini and total 

estimate being refined

CVTA-0002 #FLT - DB 1 - Ashland, Hanover, Henrico (Segments 7.C2 - 7.C4) 17,459,709$      9,078,599$                 7,200,607$                   1,180,504$       8,381,111$             (1)$                                   

CVTA-0003 C Commerce Road - FLT Phase II 76,158,981$     -$                          -$                             1,764,064$     9,699,507$    13,283,291$    7,736,961$     12,224,487$   44,708,310$      31,450,671$                 

Project start moved to FY26 start to 

match SSR6; total leverage inflated based 

on schedule adjustment; Estimate 

adjusted to TAC recommendation 

($13,550,071 additional); ADDITIONAL 

LEVERAGE FUNDING AWARDED

CVTA-0004 #FLT - C Commerce Road - Phase I 12,441,459$       9,441,459$                 1,391,127$                       984,860$        624,013$          3,000,000$        -$                                

CVTA-0005 #FLT - DB3? - Chesterfield (Segments 2C - 3A) -$                   -$                            194,503$                        194,503$             (194,503)$                       

Moved $25M from DB3 to DB2 per CVTA 

Action (Sept 2023); need updated estimate 

for DB3

CVTA-0006 #FLT - Manchester Bridge (Segment 4E-R) 34,007,461$     -$                            1,500,000$                    1,500,000$         32,507,461$                   
Project included in larger Smart Scale 

application
CVTA-0007 #FLT - Bryan Park (Segment 6B) 3,760,000$       -$                            3,000,000$                   3,000,000$        760,000$                       
CVTA-0008 #FLT - Park St (Segment 6C) 890,000$         437,000$                   713,000$                       713,000$             (260,000)$                     
CVTA-0009 #FLT - Lakeside Community Trail Ph 1 (Segment 6D.1) 3,310,000$        2,560,519$                  396,504$                       396,504$            352,977$                        
CVTA-0010 #FLT - Lakeside Community Trail Ph 2 (Segment 6D.2) 4,290,000$      3,363,217$                   803,000$                      803,000$            123,783$                         
CVTA-0011 #FLT - Lakeside Community Trail Ph 3 (Segment 6D.3) 4,150,000$       -$                            3,073,000$                   3,073,000$         1,077,000$                    
CVTA-0012 #FLT - Brook/Hilliard Road Diet (Segment 6E) 6,710,000$       4,678,000$                1,037,401$                     1,037,401$           994,599$                       
CVTA-0013 #FLT - Villa Park Phase (Segment 6G) 4,890,000$      691,000$                    3,706,000$                   3,706,000$         493,000$                       
CVTA-0014 #FLT - Longdale Trail (Segments 7A - 7C.1) 30,390,000$    3,186,000$                 26,091,000$                  26,091,000$       1,113,000$                       

CVTA-0015 Capital Trail Crossings 234,000$          -$                            -$                               -$                     234,000$                       
Project funded with non-CVTA funds; 

allocations removed
CVTA-0016 I-64 at Ashland Rd (Rte 623) Interchange - DDI 75,917,941$       42,218,112$                  5,314,767$                     1,895,820$       26,489,242$    33,699,829$       -$                                
CVTA-0017 I-64 at Oilville Rd (Rte 617) Interchange 7,512,512$          4,000,000$               -$                               606,000$        606,000$            2,906,512$                     
CVTA-0018 Bottoms Bridge Park and Ride 3,620,263$        3,422,216$                  -$                               200,000$        200,000$            (1,953)$                            
CVTA-0019 Stavemill Rd Turn Lane 1,800,000$       -$                            1,800,000$                    1,800,000$         -$                                
CVTA-0020 Rte 288 NB Hard Shouder Running 39,561,735$       31,561,735$                 -$                               8,000,000$     8,000,000$        -$                                
CVTA-0021 GreenCity Connector Trail and Bridge 9,978,000$       -$                            3,615,000$                    3,181,500$       3,181,500$        9,978,000$         -$                                
CVTA-0022 F Manchester Connection to James River 6,344,831$        -$                            1,599,897$                     2,372,467$      2,372,467$      6,344,831$          -$                                
CVTA-0023 Mayo Bridge Replacement 90,000,000$   85,000,000$             -$                               5,000,000$     5,000,000$        -$                                

CVTA-0024
POV Richmond Marine Terminal Access Improvements at I-95/Bells 

Road
2,000,000$      -$                            2,000,000$                   2,000,000$        -$                                

CVTA-0025 RT 288 NB Flyover to Bailey Bridge Connector - PE ONLY 3,696,750$       -$                            3,696,750$                    3,696,750$         -$                                
CVTA-0026 N. Gayton Road Interchange at I-64 4,985,000$       -$                            4,985,000$                   4,985,000$         -$                                
CVTA-0027 Chippenham Parkway/RT 60 Interchange Improvements 2,000,000$      -$                            2,000,000$                   2,000,000$        -$                                
CVTA-0028 Rt. 301 3rd Southbound Lane 1,229,858$         400,000$                   829,858$                       829,858$             -$                                

CVTA-0029 W Broad Street Intersection Improvements at Parham Road 15,689,770$      -$                            -$                               1,812,787$      1,148,225$      2,961,012$         12,728,758$                   

Project start moved to FY26 start to 

match SSR6; total leverage inflated based 

on schedule adjustment
CVTA-0030 Rt. 1/Rt. 30 Green-T 5,554,119$         600,000$                   1,514,091$                      3,440,028$     4,954,119$           -$                                

CVTA-0031 A Hull Street Phase II (US360) 23,866,491$    1,000,000$               -$                             993,093$        2,620,765$     3,553,677$     5,235,060$    12,402,595$      10,463,896$                

Project start moved to FY26 start to 

match SSR6; total leverage inflated based 

on schedule adjustment; Estimate 

adjusted to TAC recommendation 

($5,235,060 additional); ADDITIONAL 

LEVERAGE FUNDING AWARDED

CVTA-0032 Rt. 301/Rt. 54 Roundabout 4,524,642$       -$                            1,605,000$                    2,919,642$       4,524,642$         -$                                
CVTA-0033 W Broad Street Improvements - Short Pump 25,999,970$     22,769,970$               3,038,850$                    191,150$            3,230,000$         -$                                

CVTA-0034 I-95/Route 10 Interchange Improvement, Phase II 55,432,037$      -$                            750,000$                    1,521,043$      1,521,043$      1,199,748$      14,422,133$    19,413,967$       36,018,070$                  

Project start moved to FY26 start to 

match SSR6; total leverage inflated based 

on schedule adjustment; SPA committed 

funds left in FY23
CVTA-0035 Magellan Parkway Bridge and Approach Section 18,572,000$      -$                            9,442,400$                   6,086,400$     3,043,200$      18,572,000$        -$                                
CVTA-0036 G Broad Street Streetscape (US250) with Pulse Expansion Phase III 23,852,736$      15,052,736$                2,380,938$                    2,547,668$      3,871,394$       8,800,000$        -$                                
CVTA-0037 Brook Road Improvements - Villa Park Dr to Hilliard Rd 10,416,000$      -$                            3,104,000$                    2,508,672$      2,924,800$      1,878,528$       10,416,000$        -$                                
CVTA-0038 Woolridge Road (Route 288 - Old Hundred Road) Extension 54,252,500$     16,674,334$               37,578,166$                   37,578,166$        -$                                
CVTA-0039 Staples Mill Road Improvements 32,135,419$       26,465,419$               4,331,401$                     1,338,599$       5,670,000$         -$                                

PROJECTS

Round 3 CVTA Allocations 20



DRAFT

ID Title Estimate Non-CVTA Funds Previous FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 Total CVTA Balance to Complete Notes

PROJECTS

CVTA-0040 Woodman Road Improvements - Mountain Rd to Hungary Rd 62,569,308$     -$                            12,667,785$                   6,102,121$        9,078,094$     27,848,000$      34,721,308$                   

CVTA-0041 Route 288 Southbound Hard Shoulder Running Lane 61,740,625$      -$                            -$                               2,662,106$     2,300,000$    4,962,106$        56,778,519$                   

Project start moved to FY26 start to 

match SSR6; total leverage inflated based 

on schedule adjustment; Estimate 

adjusted to TAC recommendation

CVTA-0042 Route 360 (Woodlake Village Pkwy - Otterdale Rd) Widening 40,103,224$      -$                            750,000$                      1,134,765$      1,134,765$      10,624,174$   9,157,372$     22,801,076$      17,302,148$                    

Project start moved to FY26 start to 

match SSR6; total leverage inflated based 

on schedule adjustment; Estimate 

adjusted to TAC recommendation; SPA 

committed funds left in FY23

CVTA-0043 Vaughan Road Overpass 47,202,873$     3,568,571$                  -$                               2,673,865$     2,673,865$     5,347,730$        38,286,572$                   

Project start moved to FY26 start to 

match SSR6; total leverage inflated based 

on schedule adjustment

CVTA-0044 B Forest Hill Avenue Phase II 46,248,213$      -$                            -$                               2,917,877$      11,547,247$    2,211,496$      16,676,620$      29,571,593$                    

Project start moved to FY26 start to 

match SSR6; total leverage inflated based 

on schedule adjustment; Estimate 

adjusted to TAC recommendation

CVTA-0045 I-64 Widening 522,127,470$    422,127,470$             53,147,877$                   28,342,043$   18,510,080$     100,000,000$    -$                                

NEW Rt. 360/Walnut Grove Rd Intersection Improvement - 60% 750,750$         -$                          -$                             750,750$       750,750$           -$                             NEW PROJECT - PE ONLY
NEW I-95 and Parham Rd Interchange 5,118,750$        -$                          -$                             3,645,035$    3,645,035$        1,473,715$                    NEW PROJECT - PE ONLY
NEW North South BRT 138,128,148$    -$                          -$                             7,120,901$      271,619$          3,373,973$     8,117,705$      18,884,198$      119,243,950$               NEW PROJECT - TRANSIT

NEW D Hull Street Shared Use Path 11,553,092$      8,027,213$                -$                             1,520,238$     835,393$        1,170,248$      3,525,879$        -$                             
NEW PROJECT - BIKE/PED; Balance 

funded via SMART SCALE Round 5
NEW E Richmond Highway Fall Line Trail Improvements 39,424,891$    16,171,265$               8,739,676$                  2,289,716$     5,574,745$    1,327,967$      2,392,446$    143,155$         20,467,705$     2,785,921$                   NEW PROJECT - BIKE/PED
NEW E. Parham Road Improvements 15,648,638$    -$                          1,707,166$                   1,592,632$      3,299,798$        12,348,840$                NEW PROJECT - HIGHWAY
NEW Busy Street Extension 14,981,026$     2,019,000$               -$                             2,479,150$     4,394,231$     6,873,381$         6,088,645$                 NEW PROJECT - HIGHWAY
NEW Route 288 Southbound Auxiliary Lane 20,600,434$   -$                          1,295,776$                   3,152,319$       4,512,232$      8,960,327$        11,640,107$                  NEW PROJECT - HIGHWAY

NEW
F Port of Virginia Gateway Interchange and Streetscape 

Improvements
24,415,503$    -$                          2,289,716$                   6,099,126$     2,816,834$     11,205,676$       13,209,827$                 NEW PROJECT - HIGHWAY

NEW Fairground Rd/Maidens Rd Intersection Improvements 7,694,137$       -$                          -$                             3,660,351$     1,233,749$      2,800,037$    7,694,137$         -$                             NEW PROJECT - HIGHWAY
NEW Route 60/33/Beulah Roundabout 14,395,739$     689,000$                 338,934$                     777,682$       8,977,815$     10,094,431$       3,612,308$                   NEW PROJECT - HIGHWAY
NEW Route 250 at Route 288 Interchange Improvements 31,723,346$     -$                          -$                             206,087$       1,000,000$    1,007,399$     2,022,060$    1,786,872$     7,754,966$    13,777,384$      17,945,962$                 NEW PROJECT - HIGHWAY
NEW Route 60 (Village of Midlothian) Corridor Enhancements 36,403,274$   2,500,000$              3,967,666$                  3,002,942$    15,709,423$   22,680,031$      11,223,243$                  NEW PROJECT - HIGHWAY

248,596,856$               67,572,000$   68,756,500$   67,088,000$  65,100,000$    62,769,000$   58,878,506$   638,760,862$     

Previous FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 Total CVTA
-$                               7,508,000$     12,133,500$      16,772,000$    21,700,000$    26,901,000$   32,207,000$   117,221,500$      

20,262,301$                   -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 934,494$        21,196,795$       
20,262,301$                   7,508,000$     12,133,500$      16,772,000$    21,700,000$    26,901,000$   33,141,494$     138,418,295$     

268,859,157$                 75,080,000$  80,890,000$  83,860,000$   86,800,000$  89,670,000$  92,020,000$  777,179,157$     
268,859,157$                 75,080,000$  80,890,000$  83,860,000$   86,800,000$  89,670,000$  92,020,000$  777,179,157$     

-$                               -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   

Key:

Green Shading Project recommended from the scorecard C/B results and adopted regional framework
Bold Text New or adjusted funding

DELTA (CONTROL)

SUBTOTAL (TOTAL PLANNED ALLOCATIONS)

Unallocated Balance Entry (policy)
Unallocated Balance (surplus)

SUBTOTAL (TOTAL UNALLOCATED)

PROJECTED & ACTUAL REVENUE
TOTAL ALLOCATION & UNALLOCATED

Round 3 CVTA Allocations 21



Project ID Project Name UPC

Allocation 

Plan Date Estimate* CVTA Funds Other Funds* Balance SPA SPA Approval Leverage Attempt 1 Attempt 2 

CVTA-0001 #FLT - DB 2 - Chesterfield, Petersburg, Colonial Heights (Segments 1A - 2B) 121511 12/8/2022 72,440,000$         25,000,000$                     42,457,388$      4,982,612$         

CVTA-0002 #FLT - DB 1 - Ashland, Hanover, Henrico (Segments 7.C2 - 7.C4) 121374; 119159 12/8/2022 17,459,709$           8,381,111$                            9,078,599$        (1)$                        ✔ 2/5/2024

CVTA-0003 #FLT - Commerce Road - Phase II 12/8/2022 76,158,981$            27,000,000$                     -$                    49,158,981$        ✔ ✖

CVTA-0004 #FLT - C Commerce Road - Phase I 118946 12/8/2022 12,441,459$            3,000,000$                       9,441,459$         -$                    
CVTA-0005 #FLT - DB3 - Chesterfield (Segments 2C - 3A) 12/8/2022 51,600,000$          194,503$                            4,370,000$       47,035,497$      
CVTA-0006 #FLT - Manchester Bridge (Segment 4E-R) T27851 12/8/2022 34,007,461$           1,500,000$                        -$                    32,507,461$       

CVTA-0007 #FLT - Bryan Park (Segment 6B) 12/8/2022 3,760,000$            3,000,000$                       -$                    760,000$           ✔ Partially Executed

CVTA-0008 #FLT - Park St (Segment 6C) 117047 12/8/2022 890,000$               713,000$                            437,000$           (260,000)$          ✔ 5/4/2023

CVTA-0009 #FLT - Lakeside Community Trail Ph 1 (Segment 6D.1) 118065 12/8/2022 3,310,000$             396,504$                           2,560,519$         352,977$            ✔ 5/4/2023

CVTA-0010 #FLT - Lakeside Community Trail Ph 2 (Segment 6D.2) 118091 12/8/2022 4,290,000$            803,000$                           3,363,217$          123,783$             ✔ 5/4/2023

CVTA-0011 #FLT - Lakeside Community Trail Ph 3 (Segment 6D.3) 12/8/2022 4,150,000$             3,073,000$                        -$                    1,077,000$         ✔ 5/4/2023

CVTA-0012 #FLT - Brook/Hilliard Road Diet (Segment 6E) 118153 12/8/2022 6,710,000$             1,037,401$                          5,810,362$         (137,763)$            ✔ 5/4/2023

CVTA-0013 #FLT - Villa Park Phase (Segment 6G) 12/8/2022 4,890,000$           3,706,000$                        691,000$            493,000$           ✔ 5/4/2023

CVTA-0014 #FLT - Longdale Trail (Segments 7A - 7C.1) 12/8/2022 30,390,000$         26,091,000$                      3,186,000$         1,113,000$           ✔ 5/4/2023

CVTA-0016 I-64 at Ashland Rd (Rte 623) Interchange - DDI 123919 12/3/2021 75,917,941$            33,699,829$                      42,218,112$         -$                    ✔ Partially Executed ✔ ✔

CVTA-0017 I-64 at Oilville Rd (Rte 617) Interchange 123290 12/3/2021 7,512,512$               606,000$                          4,000,000$       2,906,512$          ✔ Partially Executed ✔ ✖

CVTA-0018 Bottoms Bridge Park and Ride 120444 12/3/2021 3,620,263$             200,000$                          3,422,216$          (1,953)$                ✔ Partially Executed
CVTA-0019 Stavemill Rd Turn Lane 12/3/2021 1,800,000$            1,800,000$                        -$                    -$                    

CVTA-0020 Rte 288 NB Hard Shouder Running 122147 12/8/2022 39,561,735$            8,000,000$                       31,561,735$         -$                    ✔ Partially Executed ✔ ✔

CVTA-0021 GreenCity Connector Trail and Bridge 12/8/2022 9,978,000$            9,978,000$                       -$                    -$                    
CVTA-0022 F Manchester Connection to James River 12/8/2022 6,344,831$             6,344,831$                         -$                    -$                    

CVTA-0023 Mayo Bridge Replacement 104888 12/8/2022 130,000,000$       5,000,000$                       85,000,000$     40,000,000$    ✔ Partially Executed

CVTA-0024 POV Richmond Marine Terminal Access Improvements at I-95/Bells Road - PE Only 12/8/2022 2,000,000$           2,000,000$                       -$                    -$                    ✔ 4/28/2023

CVTA-0025 RT 288 NB Flyover to Bailey Bridge Connector - PE ONLY 12/8/2022 3,696,750$             3,696,750$                        -$                    -$                    ✔ 4/28/2023
CVTA-0026 N. Gayton Road Interchange at I-64 - PE Only 12/8/2022 3,185,000$             3,185,000$                         -$                    -$                    

Short Pump Area Transportation Improvements - NEPA Study 124222 12/8/2022 1,800,000$            1,800,000$                        -$                    -$                    ✔ Partially Executed

CVTA-0027 Chippenham Parkway/RT 60 Interchange Improvements - PE Only 12/8/2022 2,000,000$           2,000,000$                       -$                    -$                    ✔ 4/28/2023

CVTA-0028 Rt. 301 3rd Southbound Lane 12/8/2022 1,229,858$              829,858$                           400,000$          -$                    ✔ 7/26/2023

CVTA-0029 W Broad Street Intersection Improvements at Parham Road 12/8/2022 15,689,770$           2,611,000$                          -$                    13,078,770$       ✔ ✖

CVTA-0030 Rt. 1/Rt. 30 Green-T 12/8/2022 5,554,119$               4,954,119$                          600,000$          -$                    ✔ 7/26/2023

CVTA-0031 A Hull Street Phase II (US360) 121391 12/8/2022 23,866,491$           6,291,851$                          1,000,000$        16,574,640$       ✔ ✖

CVTA-0032 Rt. 301/Rt. 54 Roundabout 12/8/2022 4,524,642$            4,524,642$                        -$                    -$                    ✔ 7/26/2023

CVTA-0033 W Broad Street Improvements - Short Pump 123583 12/8/2022 25,999,970$          3,230,000$                        22,769,970$      -$                    ✔ Partially Executed ✔

CVTA-0034 I-95/Route 10 Interchange Improvement, Phase II 12/8/2022 55,432,037$           16,336,282$                       -$                    39,095,755$       ✔ ✖

I-95/Route 10 Interchange Improvement, Phase II - 30% Design 12/8/2022 750,000$               750,000$                           -$                    -$                    ✔ 4/28/2023
CVTA-0035 Magellan Parkway Bridge and Approach Section 12/8/2022 18,572,000$           18,572,000$                      -$                    -$                    

CVTA-0036 G Broad Street Streetscape (US250) with Pulse Expansion Phase III 12/8/2022 23,852,736$           8,800,000$                       15,052,736$       -$                    ✔ ✔

CVTA-0037 Brook Road Improvements - Villa Park Dr to Hilliard Rd 12/8/2022 10,416,000$           10,416,000$                       -$                    -$                    

CVTA-0038 Woolridge Road (Route 288 - Old Hundred Road) Extension 112974 12/8/2022 54,252,500$          37,578,166$                       16,674,334$       -$                    ✔ 4/28/2023

CVTA-0039 Staples Mill Road Improvements 123584 12/8/2022 32,135,419$             5,670,000$                        26,465,419$       -$                    ✔ Partially Executed ✔ ✔

CVTA-0040 Woodman Road Improvements - Mountain Rd to Hungary Rd 12/8/2022 62,569,308$          27,848,000$                     -$                    34,721,308$       

CVTA-0041 SB 288 Continuous HSR Lane - West Creek Parkway to Route 711 12/8/2022 61,740,625$           4,372,138$                         -$                    57,368,487$      ✔ ✖

CVTA-0042 Route 360 (Woodlake Pkwy to Otterdale Rd) Widening 12/8/2022 40,103,224$           19,250,000$                      -$                    20,853,224$      ✔ ✖

Route 360 (Woodlake Pkwy to Otterdale Rd) Widening - 30% Design 12/8/2022 750,000$               750,000$                           -$                    -$                    ✔ 4/28/2023

CVTA-0043 Vaughan Road Overpass 12/8/2022 47,202,873$          4,662,308$                        3,568,571$          38,971,994$       ✔ ✖

CVTA-0044 B Forest Hill Avenue Phase II 12/8/2022 46,248,213$           14,645,821$                        -$                    31,602,392$        ✔ ✖

CVTA-0045 I-64 Gap - Segment A 122805 12/8/2022 277,828,078$        53,210,776$                       224,617,302$     -$                    ✔ Partially Executed ✔ ✔

I-64 Gap - Segment B 123831 12/8/2022 244,299,392$        46,789,224$                      197,510,168$      -$                    ✔ Partially Executed ✔ ✔

TOTAL FUNDING COMMITTED 474,298,114$           

EXISTING FUNDING COMMITMENTS

CVTA Funding Commitments - background 2/8/202422



Project ID Project Name UPC

Allocation 

Plan Date Original Adjustment % Change
CVTA-0003 #FLT - Commerce Road - Phase II 12/8/2022 27,000,000$         4,158,239$                         15.4%
CVTA-0029 W Broad Street Intersection Improvements at Parham Road 12/8/2022 2,611,000$              350,012$                            13.4%
CVTA-0031 A Hull Street Phase II (US360) 121391 12/8/2022 6,291,851$               875,684$                           13.9%
CVTA-0034 I-95/Route 10 Interchange Improvement, Phase II 12/8/2022 16,336,282$            2,327,685$                         14.2%
CVTA-0041 SB 288 Continuous HSR Lane - West Creek Parkway to Route 711 12/8/2022 4,372,138$              589,968$                           13.5%
CVTA-0042 Route 360 (Woodlake Pkwy to Otterdale Rd) Widening 12/8/2022 19,250,000$           2,801,076$                         14.6%
CVTA-0043 Vaughan Road Overpass 12/8/2022 4,662,308$            685,422$                            14.7%
CVTA-0044 B Forest Hill Avenue Phase II 12/8/2022 14,645,821$            2,030,799$                        13.9%

TOTAL INFLATION ADJUSTMENT 13,818,885$             

Project ID Project Name UPC

Allocation 

Plan Date Target Set Aside
Year 1 - Balance Entry (FY25) N/A TBD 10.0% 7,508,000$                       
Year 2 - Balance Entry (FY26) N/A TBD 15.0% 12,133,500$                        
Year 3 - Balance Entry (FY27) N/A TBD 20.0% 16,772,000$                      
Year 4 - Balance Entry (FY28) N/A TBD 25.0% 21,700,000$                      
Year 5 - Balance Entry (FY29) N/A TBD 30.0% 26,901,000$                      
Year 6 - Balance Entry (FY30) N/A TBD 35.0% 32,207,000$                      

TOTAL BALANCE ENTRY 117,221,500$            

605,338,499$    

* Estimates and non-CVTA funding being updated in coordination with VDOT and local sponsors

INFLATION ADJUSTMENT TO LEVERAGING (POLICY)

ALLOCATIONS TO BALANCE ENTRY (POLICY SET ASIDE FOR REVENUE DECREASE, FUTURE FLEXIBILITY)

TOTAL EXISTING COMMITMENTS & SET ASIDE

CVTA Funding Commitments - background 2/8/202423



Project ID Project Name UPC

Allocation 

Plan Date Estimate CVTA Funds Other Funds Balance SPA SPA Date Leverage Attempt 1 Attempt 2 
NEW Rt. 360/Walnut Grove Rd Intersection Improvement - PE Only TBD 750,750$                750,750$                           -$                    -$                    
NEW I-95 and Parham Rd Interchange - PE Only TBD 3,645,035$             3,645,035$                        -$                    -$                    

NEW North South BRT TBD 138,128,148$           18,884,198$                       -$                    119,243,950$      ✔

NEW D Hull Street Shared Use Path -27853 TBD 11,553,092$             3,525,879$                         8,027,213$         -$                    
NEW E Richmond Highway Fall Line Trail Improvements 119598 TBD 39,424,891$           20,467,705$                      16,171,265$         2,785,921$          

NEW E. Parham Road Improvements TBD 15,648,638$           3,299,798$                         -$                    12,348,840$      ✔

NEW Busy Street Extension TBD 14,981,026$            6,873,381$                         2,019,000$        6,088,645$        ✔

NEW Route 288 Southbound Auxiliary Lane TBD 20,600,434$         8,960,327$                        -$                    11,640,107$        ✔

NEW F Port of Virginia Gateway Interchange and Streetscape Improvements TBD 24,415,503$           11,205,676$                        -$                    13,209,827$       ✔

NEW Fairground Rd/Maidens Rd Intersection Improvements TBD 7,694,137$              7,694,137$                         -$                    -$                    

NEW Route 60/33/Beulah Roundabout TBD 14,395,739$            10,094,431$                       689,000$           3,612,308$          ✔

NEW Route 250 at Route 288 Interchange Improvements TBD 31,723,346$            13,777,384$                       -$                    17,945,962$       ✔

NEW Route 60 (Village of Midlothian) Corridor Enhancements TBD 36,403,274$          22,680,031$                       2,500,000$       11,223,243$         ✔

TOTAL NEW  PROJECT COMMITMENTS 131,858,732$           

Project ID Project Name UPC

Allocation 

Plan Date Estimate New CVTA Committed Total CVTA Other Funds Balance
CVTA-0003 #FLT - Commerce Road - Phase II 12/8/2022 76,158,981$            13,550,071$                        31,158,239$        44,708,310$      -$                  31,450,671$             
CVTA-0031 A Hull Street Phase II (US360) 121391 12/8/2022 23,866,491$           5,235,060$                        7,167,535$          12,402,595$       1,000,000$      10,463,896$            

TOTAL ADDITIONAL LEVERAGE 18,785,131$              

150,643,863$     

777,179,157$      

21,196,795$        

TOTAL REVENUE (PROJECTED AND ACTUAL)

UNALLOCATED FUNDS (POTENTIAL WORKING CAPITAL RESERVE)

PROPOSED ADDITIONAL LEVERAGE COMMITMENTS

TOTAL PROPOSED COMMITMENTS

PROPOSED NEW FUNDING COMMITMENTS

CVTA Funding Commitments - background 2/8/202424



CVTA AGENDA 2/23/24; ITEM C.-1. 
 

REGIONAL PROJECT FUNDING – ROUND 3 
 

Central Virginia Transportation Authority 
 

 
BACKGROUND: The Central Virginia Transportation Authority has a responsibility 
under the Code of Virginia to develop a funding plan for regional priorities utilizing 
the portion of its revenue that is set aside for that purpose. The specific language in 
the Code is as follows: 

… The funding plan shall provide for the expenditure of funds for transportation 
purposes over a four-to-six-year period and shall align with the Statewide 
Transportation Plan established pursuant to ง33.2-353, the long-range 
transportation plan of Planning District 15, or the long-range transportation plans 
of participating localities as much as possible. The Authority shall solicit public 
comment on its budget and funding plan by posting a summary of such budget 
and funding plan on its website and holding a public hearing. Such public hearing 
shall be advertised on the Authority's website and in a newspaper of general 
circulation in Planning District 15. 

From February 8, 2024 to February 22, 2024, the draft funding plan has been made 
available for public review on the CVTA website and in the following media 
publications:  The Richmond Times-Dispatch, the New Kent / Charles City Chronicle, 
the Goochland Gazette, the Powhatan Today, Richmond Free Press, and the 
Henrico Citizen. 

Technical Advisory Committee Review:  Following guidelines in the adopted 
CVTA Regional Project Selection and Allocation Framework, CVTA staff developed 
project prioritization scores and rankings and presented that to the Technical 
Advisory Committee (TAC) at its regular February meeting.  The TAC approved of 
the scoring and ranking process and approved the distribution of the project list for 
review during the public comment period. 

Finance Committee Review:  At their February meeting, Finance Committee 
members reviewed the candidate projects and recommended awards and 
reviewed the proposed allocation plan.  Rather than make a recommendation for 
action to the full CVTA Authority, the Finance Committee took the following action: 

The CVTA Technical Advisory Committee should meet to discuss the development 
of an additional draft funding scenario for consideration by the full authority.  That 
consideration should include the following: 

1. Include an additional year of programming funds, which would align this 
round with the programming year of Smart Scale Round 6, through FY31 

25



 
 

2. Include the use of reserves that CVTA staff have set aside as a potential 
working capital reserve.  For background, this amount is equal to roughly 3 
months of expected regional fund revenue and is intended to do the 
following: 

a. Help achieve financial stability and flexibility and to provide cushion 
against unexpected events that could impact cash flow. 

b. This reserve is different from the framework programming 
methodology that sets aside a targeted percentage of allocations to 
cover cost increases and allow for project selection in the 
future.  PFM’s opinion is that the framework component is more of a 
planning and programming guidance than a reserve. 

c. The working capital reserve can be built back up with expected 
regional revenue and the guidance suggests for that time period not 
to exceed 18 months. 

 
3. In addition to cost-benefit being used as a criteria for project selection, TAC 

should also consider: 

a. Regional benefit 
b. Adjusted funding requests 
c. Project readiness 
d. Leveraging opportunity 
e. Other localities support 

 

CVTA staff, TAC and Finance Committee members will be available for discussion 
of this item and its complexities at the full Authority meeting on February 23rd.  At 
that time, it is a uniformly recommended action for the CVTA to approve Round 3 
Regional funding allocations that can be advanced into the pre-application cycle 
for Smart Scale Round 6. 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Motion for Central Virginia Transportation Authority 
approval of the Round 3 Regional Funding Scenario 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CVTA RESOLUTION: The following resolution is presented for Central Virginia 
Transportation Authority approval: 
 
Resolved, that the Central Virginia Transportation Authority (CVTA) approves the 
Regional Round 3 funding scenario. 

 
CAP 
Attachments 

26



 June              
Tax Activity 

 July                            
Tax Activity 

 August                                     
Tax Activity 

 September                                      
Tax Activity 

 October                          
Tax Activity 

 November 
Tax Activity 

 December   
Tax Activity YTD LTD

09/30/23 10/31/23 11/30/23 12/31/23 01/31/24   

Receipt of Taxes:
Sales and Use Tax 13,837,841$    14,286,440$    13,761,213$    13,474,547$    13,902,477$    -$                    -$                 69,262,519$      479,712,815$    
Local Fuels Tax 3,842,244        4,369,570        4,550,281        5,197,880        4,486,802        -                      -                   22,446,777        166,227,900      

Total Receipt of Taxes 17,680,085      18,656,010      18,311,494      18,672,427      18,389,279      -                      -                   91,709,296        645,940,715      
Cash Outflows & Transfers:

Transfers:
Operating Fund 325,048           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                   325,048             2,019,768          
Regional Fund 6,074,263        6,442,722        6,450,584        6,580,670        6,436,248        -                      -                   31,984,487        225,372,332      
Payments to GRTC 2,603,256        2,798,402        2,746,724        2,800,864        2,758,392        -                      -                   13,707,637        96,588,142        

Total transfers 9,002,567        9,241,124        9,197,308        9,381,534        9,194,640        -                      -                   46,017,172        323,980,241      
Local Distributions:

Ashland 28,669             34,903             30,933             35,497             33,312             -                      -                   163,313             1,086,600          
Charles City 39,251             -                      -                      22,696             46,691             -                      -                   108,637             1,880,688          
Chesterfield 2,582,822        2,716,292        2,674,022        2,709,791        2,691,537        -                      -                   13,374,465        92,578,507        
Goochland 203,589           205,763           263,704           259,466           229,874           -                      -                   1,162,396          8,057,457          
Hanover 1,223,007        1,341,443        1,193,624        1,358,534        1,291,206        -                      -                   6,407,815          44,682,986        
Henrico 2,775,521        3,002,053        2,843,311        2,813,901        2,937,878        -                      -                   14,372,664        103,024,041      
New Kent 153,946           219,171           232,394           251,885           180,673           -                      -                   1,038,070          7,622,951          
Powhatan 195,798           223,703           209,877           226,538           217,450           -                      -                   1,073,366          7,209,842          
Richmond 1,474,916        1,671,559        1,666,322        1,612,584        1,566,018        -                      -                   7,991,399          55,817,402        

Total local distributions 8,677,519        9,414,887        9,114,187        9,290,893        9,194,640        -                      -                   45,692,124        321,960,474      
Local Distribution Fund ending balance -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                       (0)$                     

Beginning balance, July 1, 2023 678,669$           
Transfer from Local Distribution Fund 325,048$         -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                 325,048             
Prior year accounts payable -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                   -                         
Payment of operating costs -                      -                      -                      (144,461)         -                      -                      -                   (144,461)            
Interest income 2,630               3,772               4,102               3,639               3,634               -                      -                   17,776               

Operating Fund ending balance 327,678$         3,772$             4,102$             (140,822)$       3,634$             -$                    -$                 877,033$           

Beginning balance, July 1, 2023 198,993,043$    
Transfer from Local Distribution Fund 6,074,263$      6,442,722$      6,450,584$      6,580,670$      6,436,248$      -$                    -$                 31,984,487        
Payment for regional projects (234,759)         -                      (219,126)         (79,657)           (38,698)           -                      -                   (572,240)            
Interest income 582,074           632,530           646,572           2,335,844        2,104,915        -                      -                   6,301,934          
Receivable Due from Locality 86,881             (41,561)           (45,321)           -                         

Regional Fund ending balance 6,421,578$      7,162,133$      6,836,469$      8,791,536$      8,502,465$      -$                    -$                 236,707,224$    

Notes:
* Activity month is reported.  CVTA receives funds three months after the activity month 

Regional Fund

CENTRAL VIRGINIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Tax Collections and Allocations

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Local Distribution Fund

Operating Fund

27



MONTHLY 
INVESTMENT 
REPORT 

DECEMBER 2023 
This investment report for December 2023 is presented in accordance 
with the Investment Policy of the Treasurer of Chesterfield County, 
Virginia. The objective of the policy is to obtain the highest possible 
yield on available financial assets, consistent with constraints imposed 
by safety objectives, cash flow considerations and the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia that restrict the placement of public funds.  
All investments held are in compliance with this policy. 

Investments at a glance (as of  12/31/2023)  

Total Book Value $228,057,815.81 

Average Days to Maturity 49 

Yield to Maturity 365 Day Equivalent 5.58% 

Cumulative Interest Earnings FY2024 
Interest earnings through 

December 2023 reflect  the 

highest yields since 

inception. Short term yields 

continue to remain high to 

combat inflation.  Cash 

flow projections provided 

by the financial advisory 

committee will determine 

how long maturities may 

be invested.   

Investment Type Allocation 

REBECCA R. LONGNAKER, CPA, MGT 
INVESTMENT OFFICER 
9211 Forest Hill Avenue 
Richmond, VA 23235 
Office: 804-748-1201 
Email: longnakerr@chesterfield.gov 
www.chesterfield.gov/treasurer 
 

Portfolio Mix Balance 

Local Govt. Invest. Pool (LGIP) $68,258,757.99 

Virginia Investment Pool (VIP) $90,057,546.70 

Federal Agency Discount $0.00 

Federal Agency Coupon $0.00 

Corporate Bond $0.00 

Commercial Paper $9,679,683.15 

Certificate of Deposit $60,061,827.97 

US Treasury Discount $0.00 

Total $228,057,815.81 

Local Govt. Invest. 
Pool

29.93%

Virginia Investment 
Pool (VIP)

39.49%

Com Paper
4.24%

Corporate Bond
0.00%

Certificate of 
Deposit
26.34%

$0 $17,884

$1,103,488

$5,129,067

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

28



The 91-Day Treasury Bill, 6-Month Treasury Bill and the Virginia Treasury Prime Liquidity are used as benchmarks for Central 

Virginia Transportation Authority’s (CVTA) portfolio performance.  The portfolio outperformed all of the benchmarks for the month 

of December.  High inflation continues to keep short term yields high.   

YIELD BENCHMARKING 

 CURRENT YIELD YEAR AGO YoY CHANGE 

Portfolio 5.56% 4.00% 1.56% pts 

91-day T-Bill 5.44% 4.36% 1.08% pts 

6-month T-Bill 5.34% 4.71% 0.63% pts 

Va. Treas. Prime Liq. 4.78% 3.38% 1.40% pts 

Compliance Report 

Understanding Key Investment Terms 

Benchmark Comparisons 

The Treasurer’s Investment Policy specifies limits on categories of investments to obtain diversification and avoid incurring 
unreasonable risk inherent in over-investing in specific instruments. CVTA’s Investment Portfolio is in compliance with the 
Treasurer’s Investment Policy.  

 Code of Virginia  Treasurer’s Investment Policy   

Investment Category 
Maximum 

Maturity 

Authorized 

% Limit 

Rating     

Requirement 

Maximum 

Maturity 

Authorized 

% Limit 

Rating     

Requirement 

December        

Actual % 

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) N/A 100% N/A N/A 100% N/A 29.93% 

Virginia Investment Pool Trust Fund (VIP) N/A 100% N/A N/A 100% N/A 39.49% 

Federal Agency Discount No Limit 100% N/A 5 Years 100% N/A 0.00% 

Federal Agency Coupon No Limit 100% N/A 5 Years 100% N/A 0.00% 

Corporate Bonds 5 Years 100% AA/Aa 5 Years 100% AA/Aa 0.00% 

Commercial Paper 270 Days 35% A1/P1/F1/D1 270 Days 35% A1/P1/F1/D1 4.24% 

Certificate of Deposit 5 Years 100% A1/P1/AA/Aa 5 Years 100% A1/P1/AA/Aa 26.34% 

U.S. Treasury Discount No Limit 100% N/A 5 Years 100% N/A 0.00% 

Local Government         

Investment Pool (LGIP) 

A State-administered fund that enables governmental entities to realize the economies of large-scale investing and 

professional funds management. 

Virginia Investment Pool 

Trust Fund (VIP) 

A fund, administered by the Virginia Municipal League (VML) and Virginia Association of Counties (VACo), that     

provides political subdivisions of the Commonwealth of Virginia the ability to pool their funds and invest under the 

direction and daily supervision of a professional fund manager. 

Federal Agency Discount Fixed income government agency obligations priced below par and maturing in more than one year. 

Federal Agency Coupon Fixed income government agency obligations with a stated interest rate and maturing in more than one year. 

Corporate Bonds Corporate Bonds are debt securities issued by publicly-held corporations to raise money for expansion or other busi-

ness needs with a rating from at least two agencies of Aa by Moody’s Investor Service, Inc., AA by Standard and 

Poors, Inc. or AA by Fitch, and a maturity of no more than five years.   

Commercial Paper “Prime Quality” paper with a maturity of 270 days or less and rated at least prime 1, A-1, or F-1 by the major credit 

rating agencies. 

Certificate of Deposit Negotiable certificates of deposits of domestic banks and domestic offices of foreign banks with a rating of at least    

A-1 or P-1 for maturities one year or less, and AA or Aa for maturities over one year and not exceeding five years. 

U.S. Treasury Discount Fixed income government securities priced below par and maturing in less than one year. 

29


	Agenda Cover - CVTA.pdf
	Agenda - 2-23-24 CVTA Meeting.pdf
	Minutes  - 1-26-24 CVTA Meeting.pdf
	Cost Estimate Verification
	Revenue Estimates

	CVTA PDF Public Notice Press Release Feb 2024.pdf
	The Central Virginia Transportation Authority is seeking public comment on its proposed projects and funding.

	Item B - Regional Project Prioritization - Final Scoring Results.pdf
	8B -- CVTA Round 3 Summary - For Public Review v2.pdf
	8A -- Round 3 Regional Projects -- Staff Report.pdf

	Item B - Regional Project Prioritization - Regional Funding Scenario.pdf
	8B1 -- Draft CVTA Allocations Plan for FC.pdf
	8B2 -- Allocations Background - February 2024.pdf

	Round 3 Regional Projects -- Staff Report.pdf
	CVTA - FY24 Tax Collections and Allocations.xlsx.pdf
	Monthly Investment Report Dec 2023 CVTA.pdf

	Button1: 


